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director’s notes

Since I came to Aero, I have been very positively impressed by
historical heritage of the company. Aero is historically the world
largest producer of military training aircraft and I am convinced we
urgently need to re-gain such a strong role in the aerospace sector
especially in training and light attack aircraft but also in other
businesses. I fully acknowledge the 2015 results of Aero, especially
the start of deliveries of L-159 aircraft to both new customers and
the first flight of re-engined L-39 as the first step in the development of L-39NG.

In parallel and in the next years, Aero will continue in strengthening relations with existing customers and with our partners in the
major international projects. We will also focus on expanding the
customer base thanks to our best in class proprietary products
positioning the company as the leader in the training and light attack business. On that respect the L-39NG is a key strategic project
for Aero. Our aerostructure business will require some re-assessment to ensure long term profitability and full alignment to long
term strategic and technological objectives.

I will focus my first months in the company at performing a business review developing a long term strategic plan supported by
technological and industrial considerations. This will include
setting a new organisation, new governance and designing a new
management system focused on people as the key asset of the
company. We also plan to enhance industrial integration as a
vehicle to improve performance of the company and fix remaining
delivery and quality issues.

Our mission is to position Aero to become a partner of choice for
our current and prospective customers and to advance Aero from
where it is today to a higher level of International positioning.
I believe we will be successful in this journey.

giuseppe giordo,
President and CEO of the company

our mission is to advance aero
from where it is today to a higher
level of international positioning

”
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l-39ng
l-39ng
is a project
of new,
highly
effective
jet trainer
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corporate profile

operations division

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (hereinafter “Aero”) is a jointstock company that was incorporated on 15 December 2011 (originally established as TULAREO a.s., the new name of AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. was entered in the Commercial Register
on 19 September 2012). The company’s registered office is located
at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště No. 374, postcode 250 70. The
company was added to the Commercial Register administered by
the Municipal Court in Prague on 15 December 2011 under Section
B, File No. 17749. Aero’s Company Registration No. is 24194204,
and its VAT Number is CZ24194204.
According to the terms of the Project for the Division of AERO
Vodochody a.s., AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE, a.s. became the
successor company of AERO Vodochody a.s. and is now continuing
the long and successful history of the original enterprise.
Until the end of 2006, almost 100% of the shares in AERO Vodochody a.s. were owned by the Czech Consolidation Agency. On 4
January 2007, the Penta Group became the company’s sole shareholder and, in that same year, initiated a project for restructuring
the company. Between 2007 and 2011, Aero Vodochody a.s.
achieved a cumulative net profit of CZK 1,523 million.

Effective 1 January 2012, the manufacturing division of AERO Vodochody a.s. was spun off to form AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE
a.s., with the Penta Group remaining the 100% owner of both companies. Aero’s registered capital of CZK 1,002 million is fully paidup. AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is divided to four divisions:
Operations, Aerostructures, Defence & MRO and Engineering.
Aero is the Czech Republic’s largest aviation manufacturer. Its activities include the development, manufacture, sale, and servicing
of technology for both the military as well as the civil sectors. The
company’s focus is on collaboration with leading aircraft manufacturers within the context of international projects. In addition, Aero
has its own proprietary products and the Defence & MRO division is
a long-term partner of the armed forces in many countries, particularly the Army of the Czech Republic. Aero has successfully implemented a quality management system certified in compliance with
AS 9100/ISO 9001, and holds all of the relevant attestations and certificates for the company as a whole as well as for its individual processes, thus meeting the criteria of national and international
standards. For the final products it manufactures, Aero is authorised
to perform each individual activity that is involved, i.e. it has the
appropriate licences for development, manufacture, maintenance,
and maintenance training. As far as Aero’s sub-contractor activities
are concerned, the company holds individual approvals for its Quality
Management System and Special Processes both from its individual
customers as well as within the framework of NADCAP accreditation.

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE
historically delivered
more than 11,000 aircraft.

Over 800 aircraft
manufactured in Aero
still fly all over the world.
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profile of the division
AVA Operations integrates the majority of all operational assets and
capabilities within Aero. The division was created in April 2014 and
the COO was appointed starting October 2014. Operations is solely
dedicated to serve to internal customers, which are Aerostructures, Defence & MRO and the Engineering divisions and it is the
largest division of the company.
the principal operational areas concentrated within the division are:
• Manufacturing engineering
• Sourcing and logistics
• Detailed part fabrication – CNC machining, sheet metal forming,
welding, tube bending, etc.
• Special processes – various surface treatments, heat treatment,
painting and others
• Composite part fabrication
• Assembly operations
• Quality function including non-destructive testing
• Facilities and Maintenance
Since the end of 2014, Aero continuously works on analysing and
restructuring Operations Division to increase quality and efficiency
of production in Aero.

Key events of 2015:
• Restructuring of the Operations organization and setting the
foundation to form Centres of Excellence.
• Centralization of supporting functions as planning, quality, production engineering and facilities/maintenance to ensure consistency in approach, better control and better use of our resources.
• Creation of multi-functional Operations Leadership Teams for all
assembly lines.
• Centralization of procurement organizations to Supply Chain
Department.
• Consolidation of Manufacturing Engineering and assigning the
team with the responsibility for end to end production process.
• Creation of Quality Engineering and Supplier Quality Engineering
Teams to drive the changing approach from quality control to
preventative quality not only in Aero but also by its suppliers.
• Engaging the new automated riveting machine in the production
of A321.
Key goals of the division for the year 2016:
• Successfully continue in restructuring of the Operations organisation in accordance with best industry practice
• Increase the production on automatic riveting machine
• Successful implementation of production on the new programs
• Drive Quality and On time delivery
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aerostructures division

aerostructures programs

profile of the division
The Aerostructures Division of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is
a 1st and 2nd Tier supplier to leading world aerospace manufacturers. Aero focuses primarily on the manufacture and assembly
of complex aircraft assemblies with a high degree of product finalization, including systems integration and testing, supply management, and final inspection. Aero has also considerable potential
in the production of landing gears and composites. The Aerostructures Division is involved in the complete lifecycle of commercial
and military projects, combining the company's extensive experience in the aviation industry acquired during over ninety years
of its existence with concurrent implementation of the latest technologies, testing methods, and lean production principles.

embraer Kc-390
program description
• A new medium-sized multi-purpose military transport aircraft,
designed for cargo and personnel transport, a direct competitor
to the C-130 Hercules by Lockheed Martin.
• The project was initiated by the Brazilian Air Force.
• 28 aircraft have been ordered by the Brazilian Air Force with
a commitment to partially finance their development.
• Columbia, Chile, Argentina, Portugal, and the Czech Republic
have also shown interest in acquiring the aircraft.
• Aero is a strategic risk-sharing partner to Embraer.
• The aircraft rolled out in October 2014, with its first flight on
February 3, 2015; certification of the aircraft is expected during
2017 and entry into service in 2018.

Aero continuously expands its portfolio of customers among the
world leaders in aviation production. Since 2009 it has been striving to achieve balance between production programs and risksharing development programs to ensure long-term, highly
prospective contracts. The main customers of the Aerostructures
Division are Embraer (KC-390), Sonaca (Bombardier CSeries),
Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation (S-76D, UH-60M, and S-70i programs), AleniaAermacchi (Airbus A321, C-27J), Messier-BugattiDowty (Airbus A320), and Latecoere (Embraer E-170/190).

aero products and roles
• Aero is fully responsible for the development, industrialization,
certification support, and production of wing fixed leading edges.
• Aero is fully responsible for industrialization and production of
all doors, the cargo ramp, and the rear fuselage II.
program outlook
• After the program ramp-up in 2018, Aero expects a delivery rate
of 12 to 18 shipsets per year.
• Embraer recorded interest in 60 aircraft units in 2015.

In 2015, Embraer
recorded interest
in sixty aircraft units.

Brazilian Air Force ordered twenty-eight
aircraft and committed to partially
finance their development.
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bombardier cseries
program description
• The Bombardier CSeries aircraft is a new single-aisle aircraft
for short and medium-haul commercial traffic. Two versions of
the aircraft (CS100 and CS300) can carry between 100 and 150
passengers.
• The CSeries target is to have the lowest operating costs in its
class thanks to its advanced airframe design and new generation engines.
• Aero is a development and risk-sharing partner to the Belgian
company Sonaca.
• Aero is the exclusive supplier of the wing fixed leading edges.
• The first flight of CS100 prototype took place on September 16, 2013.
The program’s development schedule was affected by technical issues. The certification of this type was finished by the end of 2015.
• The first flight of CS300 prototype took place on February 27, 2015.
The certification of this type is expected to finish during 2016.
• CS100 should enter into service in the middle of 2016, CS300 six
months later.

aero products and roles
• Aero produces fully assembled and equipped fixed parts of the
wing fixed leading edge (FLE) ready for installation on the aircraft.
• Aero is responsible for the design, industrialization, certification,
and production.
program outlook
• By the end of 2015, Bombardier recorded 243 binding orders:
88 commitments, 202 options, and 23 purchase rights.
• Between 2012–2015, Aero delivered 17 FLEs configured for
CS100 aircraft and 5 FLEs in configuration for CS300 as per customer requests.
• In 2015, the production of serial shipsets continuously ramped up.
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aerostructures programs
siKorsKy s-76
program description
• Sikorsky S-76 is a successful twin-engine civil medium-category
helicopter with a maximum takeoff weight of 6 tons, designed to
carry up to 12 passengers.
• Since production commenced in 1982, Sikorsky has delivered
more than 800 helicopters to customers, mainly in the United
States, Canada, Europe, and the Far East.
• Aero has been manufacturing the S-76 since 2000 and to date
has delivered more than 380 helicopters.
• In 2011 Aero began serial production of the S-76D version, which
gradually replaced the previous model, the S-76C++.
• First S-76D helicopters were delivered to their operators in
December 2013.

aero products and roles
• Aero produces fully assembled and equipped helicopter airframes ready for installation of dynamic parts (engines, gearbox,
rotors).
• Aero has full responsibility for production and the supply chain.
• Aero produces approximately 8,000 different parts and components, including tubing and wiring harnesses.
• Aero installs avionic, hydraulic, electrical, and fuel systems and
provides systems testing.
• Aero provides after-sales support.
program outlook
• In the near future, Aero expects to deliver units of S-76D
helicopters per year.

siKorsKy uh-60m and s-70i blacK haWK
program description
• Sikorsky S-70 and UH-60 series helicopters are currently the
most common types of military transport helicopter.
• The UH-60M is the latest version and is used by the U.S. armed
forces and by a number of other countries through US government Foreign Military Sales; the S-70i is the export version.
• The contract between Aero and Sikorsky for the UH-60M cockpit
was concluded in 2010 as a dual source contract; the first cockpit
was delivered in June 2011. In 2015 Aero delivered 49 cockpits.
• Aero supplies cockpits to Sikorsky PZL Mielec in Poland for the
international version of the Black Hawk, the S-70i.
• The program has a stable long-term outlook.
• Aero provided SAC a quotation for the Multi-year 9 contract for
years 2018–2023. Aero expects conclusion of this contract
amendment in 2017.

aero products and roles
• Aero delivers a fully equipped cockpit for the UH-60M and S-70i
helicopters.
• Aero manufactures parts and assembles the cockpit, including
installation of electrical harnesses and flight safety parts.
program outlook
• The long-term forecast for the UH-60M program is the production of at least 500 UH-50M helicopters during next ten years to
fulfil requirements of U.S. Armed Forces. This number excludes
exports, where Aero expects deliveries of at least 200 helicopters in the same time horizon.
• Aero’s goal is to maintain a 50% market share.

49
500
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Aero delivered the first cockpit
for UH-60M helicopter in June 2011. In 2015,
Aero produced forty-nine Black Hawk cockpits.

The long-term forecast for the UH-60M program is the
production of at least 500 UH-50M helicopters during next
ten years to fulfil requirements of U.S. Armed Forces.
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aerostructures programs
alenia c-27J spartan
program description
• The Alenia C-27J is a military tactical transport aircraft with
a maximum payload of 11.5 tons.
• The primary users of the aircraft are the United States Air Force
as well as the countries of Central and Eastern Europe.
• Since 2007 Aero has been the sole supplier of the centre wing
box, which is a critical structural and system unit of the aircraft.
• Aero delivered 3 centre wing box units in 2015.
aero products and roles
• Aero produces a fully assembled, equipped and tested centre
wing box ready for installation on the aircraft.
• Aero is fully responsible for production, including supply chain
management, and for after sales support.
• The centre wing box assembly includes integral tanks, pylons for
engine installation, mechanical systems of wing, fuel and hydraulic lines, and electrical harnesses. All systems are tested by Aero.
program outlook
• Aero expects to deliver approximately 5 shipsets annually in
upcoming years.

alenia - a321 fuselage panels
program description
• The Airbus A321 is a stretched derivative of the standard A320.
It is the largest of the A320 family delivered by Airbus to numerous airlines.
• The contract with Alenia Aermacchi (since 1. 1. 2016 Finmeccanica) for 14A section panels was signed in 2012; Aero is the dual
source supplier.
aero’s products and roles
• Aero assembles four panels of section 14A: the left and right side
panels, the crown, and the bottom panel.
• Aero is fully responsible for the production and supply chain.
• Aero is responsible for after sales support.
program outlook
• Market demand for the A321 aircraft has been growing over the
several past years; current aircraft backlog will ensure stable
delivery volumes in upcoming years.
• In 2015, Aero delivered 11 sets of panels and it expects further
ramp-up in 2016.

Aero delivered
three centre wing box
units in 2015.

11.5

The Alenia C-27J is a military
tactical transport aircraft with
a maximum payload of 11.5 tons.
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landing gear production
program description
• Aero is the OEM manufacturer of landing gears for small aircraft and the supplier of components for landing gears for large
transport aircraft.
• Aero designs and manufactures landing gears for the Czech
company Aircraft Industries for their twin-engine L-410 Turbolet
turboprop transport aircraft for 19 passengers.
• Since 2010, Aero has delivered sub-assemblies to Messier-Bugatti-Dowty for the landing gears of the Airbus A320 family
(A318/319/320) of single-aisle medium-range aircraft, currently
the best-selling aircraft family. In 2014, the contract was extended also on A320/A321 NEO aircraft.
• Aero produces landing gears for all its own training and combat
aircraft.

aero products and roles
• Aero supplies landing gear sub-assemblies for the Airbus A320
aircraft to Messier-Bugatti-Dowty, the world's leading manufacturer of landing gear systems.
• Aero produces complete nose and main landing gears for the
L-410 Turbolet.
• Aero is the type certificate holder for the landing gears of all
in-house aircraft production (the L-39/59/159 and Ae-270).
program outlook
• Aero expects a gradual increase of production for Messier-Bugatti-Dowty in accordance with the ongoing market demand for
the A320 aircraft family, and in connection with expansion of its
current scope of work.
• In upcoming years, Aero expects to deliver approximately
21 shipsets per year for L-410 aircraft.
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aerostructures programs

defence & mro division

other programs
embraer 170/190
• With more than 1,100 aircraft produced, the E-Jets family is one
of the most commercially successful series, operating primarily
as regional aircraft.
• Aero has been a partner of Latecoere since 2007 as well as the
single source supplier of hinges and internal structures of all doors.
• In 2014 Aero started the bidding process for a new generation of
E-Jets family, the E2.
• Aero delivered the first E2 set in June 2015, the first flight of the
E2 aircraft is scheduled for 2016.
• The three versions of the second generation E-Jets will become
operational in 2018-2020.
airbus a320, a330
• Since 2005, Aero delivers small assemblies and structural parts
for Airbus A320 a A330 to German company Premium Aerotec.
• In 2013, Aero signed contract with Stelia Aerospace, subsidiary of
Airbus Group, for E-Bay Doors deliveries for A320 family.

f/a-18 super hornet
• Dual source supplier of the gun bay door for F/A-18 Super
Hornet aircraft.
• Deliveries began in 2001, Aero has delivered more than 500 units.

Key events of 2015:
• Successful first flight of CS300 prototype in February and finishing of the certification of CS100 in December.
• Aero launched production on automatic riveting machine.

profile of the division
The Defence & MRO (Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul) Division of
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. focuses on support and development of its final products – L-39, L-59, and L159 aircraft, as well
as on provision of various services in the field of aircraft repairs,
upgrades, modifications, and testing.
Among the biggest successes of Defence & MRO Division in 2015
was integration of FJ44-4M Williams engine to L-39 airframe, which
completed the first stage of L-39NG (Next Generation) project. Aero
also launched development of a brand new aircraft based on the
construction concept of the current L-39 which will offer an up to
date adversary training solution for any modern air force. Technological demonstrator of L-39NG with the new engine and demonstration of new avionics made a maiden flight in September 2015
and it was publicly displayed for a first time during NATO Days in
Ostrava just days after the first flight.

Aero achieved another success when it delivered first L-159 ALCA
aircraft to new customers – American company Draken International, which will use the aircraft for commercial activities i.e. for
tactical flight training of various service branches of US armed
forces; and to Iraqi Air Force. By 2017, Aero will deliver to these two
customers 36 L-159 aircraft.
Aero continued to provide support to L-39 and L-59 aircraft operated by both civil and military users. Aero provides L-39/L-59
aircraft users with a broad portfolio of services from service life
extensions and overhauls up to the overall upgrade of aircraft
systems. In the years 2010-2016 Aero assured/will assure renewal
of airworthiness for 98 aircraft of L-39/59/159 family.

Key goals of the division in 2016
• Strengthen position of the company in Airbus A320/350
programs.
• Gain a new risk-sharing project.

1

Technological demonstrator
of re-engined L-39CW made
a maiden flight in September 2015.

3
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By the end of 2015 Aero registered three civil
users and couple of military users of L-39
interested in re-engining of their aircraft.
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defence & mro programs
program l-39ng (next generation)
L-39NG is a project of new, highly efficient trainer, able to serve as
basic, advanced and LIFT trainer thanks to advanced avionics.
L-39NG is based on aero dynamical concept of current L-39, but is
manufactured with the use of new technologies and contents
modern systems. L-39NG aircraft offers unprecedented efficiency
along with minimal maintenance. L-39NG is a modern trainer
aircraft with a low acquisition price and improved flight characteristics while keeping up its tradition of simple maintenance. The
project was introduced in July 2014.
stage one – re-engining of l-39
• At first, Aero wants to offer current users of L-39 an option to
extend the life of the aircraft and modernizing it by the installation of a new engine and optionally also new avionics.
• In 2015, Aero successfully installed Williams FJ-44M engine and
avionics built around Genesys Aerosystems’ multi-functional
displays and head-up displays (HUD) by SPEEL Praha into
existing L-39 aircraft.
• In September 2015, the demonstrator of re-engined L-39
successfully completed its first flight.
• In 2016 Aero wants to carry out development tests and obtain
a type certificate for the modified aircraft.
• By the end of 2015 Aero registered three civil users and couple of
military users of L-39 interested in re-engining of their aircraft.

stage two – new aircraft
• Aero now develops a brand new L-39NG aircraft, which combines
the proven aerodynamic concept with the most advanced manufacturing technologies and systems, which guarantee a long
service life, highly efficient operating parameters, low investment and operating costs and wide utilization within air forces.
• Aero wants to offer the new L-39NG aircraft to operators of
re-engined L-39, who could use previously acquired Williams
engine and new avionics in the new aircraft distribute the cost.
• Over 50% of these aircraft will have to be withdrawn from service
in the next 15 years which gives Aero an opportunity to offer the
aircraft to brand new customers.
• First L-39NG aircraft should be delivered to customers in 2019.

l-159 light combat and training system
An L-159 system, consisting of the L-159 ALCA/B/T aircraft, integrated logistic support, ground training system, flight planning and
evaluation means, and other equipment, has been successfully
implemented in the Czech Air Force.
In April 2014, the company signed contracts for the supply of L-159
aircraft owned by the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic to the
American company Draken International and to the Iraqi Air Force.
support of l-159 aircraft operated by the czech air force
• L-159 ALCA single-seat light combat aircraft were put in service
the Czech Air Force in 2000; the two-seat training-combat version
L-159T arrived in 2007.
• The L-159 aircraft perform a broad number of tasks from advanced
and operations training over close air support up to reconnaissance
missions and air defence. They regularly participate in international NATO flying training events (such as the Tactical Leadership
program, NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter, and Flying Rhino). Aero
supports L-159 aircraft operated by the Czech Air Force as a part
of a Follow On Support and Services contract (FOSS), which comprised supply of spare parts and consumables, repairs, technical
consulting, and improvements to the maintenance system.
• AERO also continued with its program of upgrading the L-159's functions – in 2014, the company successfully completed production of
a new wing with an integral fuel tank, increasing the fuel storage
capacity of the L-159 and considerably increasing its flight range.

support of l-159 aircraft serving by the international customers
• In April 2014, the company signed a contract for the supply of ten
single-seat L-159A and two two-seat L-159T1 to Iraqi Air Force.
• Aero delivered first L-159 aircraft to Iraqi Air Force in December
2015.
• Another contract for the supply of up to 28 L-159 aircraft to American company Draken International was signed in July 2014.
As in the previous case, repairs of the aircraft and delivery of logistic equipment are part of the supply.
• The aircraft will be used for tactical flight training of US Air Force
pilots. Aero delivered the first aircraft to the new owner during
a ceremony in September 2015.

1

First L-39NG aircraft
should be delivered
to customers in 2019.

15,000
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Airframe of the new aircraft
is designed for a life of up
to 15,000 flight hours.
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defence & mro programs
l-39/l-59 support
Aero also focuses on support of L-39 and L-59 aircraft operated by
both civil and military users. Aero provides to its customers a wide
range of services from spare parts delivery, regular inspections of
the aircraft and its systems, full spectrum of maintenance services including overhauls and related service-life extension and
installation of new digital flight data recorder. Service teams of Aero
are prepared to work on customers’ site, they have operated in
Algeria, Bulgaria, Hungary, Nigeria, Slovakia, Tunisia and other
countries.
In order to increase the quality of training on L-39 aircraft, the
division is working together with SPEEL Praha on the development
of a heads-up display (HUD) suitable for use in L-39 aircraft. The
system went through a series of demanding trials and flight tests
in 2014 and is ready for serial production.

support of the l-59 aircraft in tunisia
• Fulfilment of Follow On Support and Services contract (FOSS)
for 2015.
• Overhaul of six L-59 aircraft.
support of the l-39 aircraft and their operators
• Successful fulfilment of contract for overhaul of 17 aircraft for
Algeria.
• Fulfilment of contract for service life extension of L-39 aircraft in
Slovakia.
• Fulfilment of contract for overhaul of L-39 aircraft in Bulgaria.
• Fulfilment of FOSS contract for support of operation of L-39
serving by the Czech Air Force.
• Start of overhaul of L-39 aircraft operated by Lithuania.

Aero makes overhaul of 17
L-39 aircraft for Algeria.

By 2017, Aero will
deliver to its customers
36 L-159 aircraft.
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other activities
In addition to the programs relating to the aircraft produced by the
company, the Defence & MRO division also offers its customers
various services relating to aircraft modification and testing. To
support the activities of the Defence & MRO Division, Aero maintains the necessary capacities in the fields of aircraft and aerospace
product design, logistics, flight testing, as well as premises
and preparation and testing equipment for aircraft production and
maintenance. The company also ensures support for and maintenance of DV-2 jet engines through its subsidiary Clarex.
Under the authorization to carry out custom modifications of civil
aircraft, the division installed dozens of EFB (Electronic Flight Bag)
systems. This is an electronic information system that assists the
crew with flight management, primarily on A320 and A330 aircraft.

Key events of 2015
• Successful installation of Williams FJ44-4M engine to L-39 aircraft and maiden flight of the re-engined aircraft in September.
• Delivery of first L-159 aircraft to Iraq.
• Handover of the first L-159 aircraft to Draken International.
• Completion of overhaul of the second half of 17 L-39 aircraft
in Algeria.
• Completion of overhaul of two L-59 for Tunisia.
• Obtaining an order for repairs of two L-39 aircraft in Bulgaria.
• Initiation of negotiations with the Czech Ministry of Defence
to carry on PP2000 service of L-159T1 aircraft and start of overhaul of the first aircraft.
• Signing of contracts for L-39 overhauls with Lithuania and Azerbaijan.
Key goals of the division for 2016
• Completion of development tests and obtaining the type certificate for the re-engined L-39CW aircraft.
• Proceed in development of L-39NG as planned.
• Launching a marketing campaign for re-engining of L-39 and for
L-39NG.
• Achieving efficiency of contract with Azerbaijan for overhauls
of their L-39 aircraft.
• Successful fulfilment of current contracts for overhauls of aircraft for MoD of Lithuania, Bulgaria, Czech Republic and for
Draken International.
• Obtaining orders for overhaul of more L-39 aircraft.
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engineering division
profile of the division
The Engineering Division of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. was
established in 2013 and provides comprehensive integrated portfolio of services in the area of aerospace structures development.
Division is focusing on offering full turnkey solution from concept
design to testing & certification across airframe and systems using
concurrent engineering practices. Engineering division is participating on all projects of Aero.
Aero has extensive technical experience with the development
of commercial and military aircrafts. The division is able to offer
a wide range of product development due to a flexible and efficient
structure – from work package assembly development inclusive
of risk-sharing programs to engineering services with OEM inclusive of structural work packages and support services.
Aero has more than 150 experienced development engineers,
including designers, analysts, technical personnel, and system
specialists.

engineering programs
The Engineering Division provides both production support services
across all projects of Aero and independent engineering services
with external clients for development of structural work packages,
on-site consulting, certification support, and other.
Key capabilities of the engineering division:

complete aircraft development
Aero has a long-term tradition in the development of whole aircraft. Starting with initial concept design through tooling design and
individual structures development to tests and certification. Aero
is historically the largest producer of jet training aircrafts in the
world. This clearly declares the quality and development efficiency.

• Concept & Detailed Design
• Analysis
• Testing
• Certification
• Production Support
• Liaison Office
• Technical Publications
• Tooling Design

The company provides a wide range of support services to military
aircrafts developed in Aero: L-39 Albatros, L-59 Super Albatros and
L-159A/B Alca. Aero has also developed a single-engine transport
aircraft Ae270. The aircraft successfully completed its first flight in
2000 and was certified by FAA and EASA in 2005. The Engineering
Division also participates in service life extensions of aircrafts manufactured by Aero. In 2013, the division completed development of
a composite aileron for the L-39.
The Engineering Division now cooperates with Defence & MRO
Division on the L-39NG project – new generation of the legendary
jet trainer. Engineering Division is responsible for design, analysis
and support of certification of the fuselage airframe, flight control
system, landing gears and fuel tank system.

150
2
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Aero has more than 150 experienced development
engineers, including designers, analysts, technical
personnel, and system specialists.

Aero is responsible for development and
manufacturing of wing fixed leading edge in two
risk-sharing programs: KC-390 and CSeries.
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company profile

design to build programs

built-to print programs

custom engineering specialisation

The Engineering Division provides development of engineering solutions
for risk-sharing programs, such as development of aircraft structures
within the international development programs that are subsequently
manufactured by Operations and Aerostructures Divisions.

Aero is a major partner in the cooperative production of many
different structures. The division has developed a strong and
flexible approach that can be easily customized to fit a variety
of projects. The Engineering Division provides support services
across all programs in the form of industrial engineering, production support and configuration.

Except of production support services across all projects of Aero,
the Engineering Division provides independent engineering services to external clients.

bombardier cseries
• Aero was a risk-sharing partner to Belgian company Sonaca
since 2009 and now is becoming Tier 1 for Bombardier.
• The role of Aero is to develop and manufacture the wing fixed
leading edge of the transportation aircraft.
• The certification of CS100 was completed at the end of 2015,
CS300 is expected to achieve certification during 2016.

tecnam p2012
• Since 2014, the Engineering Division participates in the development of Tecnam P2012 Traveller for Italian company Costruzioni
Aeronautiche Tecnam.
• Aero is responsible for development, prototyping, testing and
certification of the nose and main landing gear.
• Tecnam P2012 Traveller is high-wing, twin piston engine multirole aircraft with 9-11 seats.
• The development started in 2011, roll-out is expected in April
2016.

embraer Kc-390
• Aero is a risk-sharing partner of Brazilian company Embraer
since 2011.
• Aero is responsible for design and manufacturing of wing fixed
leading edge of military transport aircraft KC-390.
• Aero is also responsible for manufacturing of cargo ramp, fuselage tail part, and all cabin doors of the aircraft.
• KC-390 completed the first flight in February 2015 and it should
achieve full certification in 2017.

By the end of 2015, Aero delivered
17 FLEs configured for CS100 aircraft
and 5 FLEs in configuration for CS300.

By the end of 2015, Bombardier
recorded 243 binding orders for
CSeries aircraft
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embraer Kc-390
• In 2013, Aero signed contract with Brazilian company Embraer
for a package of engineering services.
• The role of Aero is to develop the military transportation aircraft
FTI equipment & installations and wing to fuselage fairings.

22

Key events of 2015
• First flight of CS300 in February and successful certification of
CS100 in December.
• KC-390 first flight.
• Tecnam P2012 landing gear design completed in June 2015.
• L-39NG engine demonstrator first flight.
• L-410NG landing gears prototype delivery for aircraft testing,
commencement of the certification process.
• EV-55 landing gears shock absorber second flying prototype delivery.
Key goals of the division for the year 2016
• Complete successfully PDR and CDR for L-39NG.
• L-39NG design and test of systems-flight control system,
landing gear and fuel system.
• Tecnam P2012 roll out is planned for April 2016 and first flight is
scheduled for June 2016.
• Technical participation on building of the 3rd prototype of KC-390.
• Becoming Tier 1 on FLE CSeries project for Bombardier.
• L-410NG certification fulfilment for landing gears.
• EV-55 continuing of flying and ground tests.
• Fulfilment of annual plan of grant project Centre of Competence
in cooperation with Honeywell and VZLU (Aeronautical Research
and Test Institute).
• Increase engineering services portfolio and achieve more design
to build programs.
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significant events after the balance sheet date

january:

february:

may:

• Part of the plant of Vodochody Airport company was transferred
to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In relation to this transfer,
there has been change in the statues of the company and business activity range of the company was expanded by operation
of the airport and associated services.
• Aero announced strategic business partnership with the largest
Czech dealer in military equipment – Omnipol company
• Aero signed a contract with German company MT Aerospace for
deliveries of three packages of small assemblies and composite
parts for Airbus A400M and A350 aircraft

• First Iraqi pilots completed training for L-159 aircraft
• First flight of CS300 prototype

• Effective as of 15th May 2016, Ladislav Šimek was relieved of his
duties as President of the company and Chairman of the Board
of Directors. Giuseppe Giordo has been appointed as the new
President and CEO of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
• Aero and Singapore company ST Aerospace signed design-tobuild contract for development and delivery of frame shell structures for passenger to freighter conversion of A320/321.

march:
• Aero sent three L-159 aircraft to Draken International
• Roll-out of Tecnam P2012

1

The A350 is the first Airbus aircraft with
both fuselage and wing structures made
primarily of carbon-fibre-reinforced polymer.

Aero and German company MT Aerospace
signed contract for deliveries of three
packages for Airbus A400M and A350.
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3

expected development
• Delivery of the first CSeries aircraft to final customer - Swiss Global Air Lines.
• Aero will deliver assemblies for the first mass-produced KC-390
aircraft.
• Completion of type certification for the re-engined L-39 aircraft.
• Delivery of the first composite parts and small assemblies for
MT Aerospace.
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s-76d
in 2011 aero
began serial
production
of the s-76d
version.
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financial results of the company

The results of Aero for the year 2015 were significantly influenced
by the reduction of deliveries of the S-76D helicopters. Nevertheless, Aero managed to make a profit; the positive development of
the company, which started in 2007 when the company was taken
over by the investment group Penta, thus further continues. In 2015,
Aero generated the operating profit before depreciations in the
amount of CZK 415.6 million. Balance sum as of 31 December 2015
amounted to CZK 6,244.4 million, shareholders' capital covered
24.1% of assets and reached the amount of CZK 1,502.3 million.

sales
In 2015, the company generated the revenues in the amount of CZK
4,238.6 million. The most important source of revenues were the sales
of own products and services, for which the company received CZK
3,202.5 million. The revenues from sales of goods reached the amount
of CZK 730.8 million. The annual increase by CZK 611.5 was connected with the deliveries to the Ministry of Defence of Iraq. For the sale
of assets and material, the company received CZK 305.3 million. For
the deliveries to foreign customers, the Company received CZK 3,071.4
million, which represents 72.5% of the total revenues.
The revenues of the Aerostructures Division were affected by significant reduction of deliveries of the S-76D helicopters, which was partially compensated by the deliveries of other programs of the division. The total share of
the Aerostructures division in the total revenues of the company was 53.4%.
The Defence & MRO division generated the revenues in the amount of CZK
1,912.8 million and its share in the revenues of the company was 45.1%. The
revenues were positively influenced by the deliveries for the company Draken
International and to the Ministry of Defence of Iraq. The remaining divisions
of the Company generated the revenues in the amount of CZK 61.2 million.

profit
For the year 2015, the company generated the profit before tax in the
amount CZK 61.7 million. The tax duty for the year 2015 amounted to
CZK 4.4 million. The economic result before tax was made up by CZK
291.9 million of the operating profit, a loss from financial activities in
the amount of CZK 229.5 million, and a loss of CZK 0.6 million from
extraordinary activities.
Operating profit annually declined by CZK 212.7 million to the value of
CZK 291.9 million; the amount of the operating profit was adversely
affected by the drop of the deliveries of S-76D and the costs incurred
with the production start-up of new programs. From the financing of
the company, a loss incurred in the amount of CZK 229.5 million, which
was caused mainly by the weakening of the Czech crown against the
US dollar. The revenues from sales of goods reached the amount of
CZK 126.3 million. The implementation of financial derivatives caused
a loss in the amount of CZK 6.3 million. On the interest expenses, Aero
spent CZK 62.7 million. The loans and interest-bearing deposits flowed-in the interest in the amount of CZK 3.3 million. On charges related to financing, CZK 37.4 million was spent.

asset structure
As of 31 December 2015, the company owned the assets in the
amount of CZK 6,244.4 million. Fixed assets shown as of 31 December 2015 amounted to CZK 1,841 million. Assets in progress
register mainly the assets related to the development of parts
of the KC-390 aircraft, the L-39NG project, and the implementation
of new production programs. Current assets of Aero bound the
means in the amount of CZK 3,975 million. 70.4% of current assets

were formed by reserves, that grew annually by CZK 551.6 million.
The increase of reserves is related to the deliveries of L-159 to the
company Draken International and to the Ministry of Defense of
Iraq. The company managed to gain advance payments from the
customers for the financing of part of the stock. Accruals participated in the value of total assets by 6.9%.

financial standing
As of 31 December 2015, the company financed 24.1% of assets from
own resources. Foreign resources in the amount of CZK 4,493 million
were created by the reserves in the amount of CZK 295.1 million, bank
credits and loans from leasing companies in the amount of CZK 2,228.2
million, by the liabilities to affiliated entities in the amount of CZK 136.5
million, and by the liabilities to business partners in the amount of CZK
1,833.2 million. In comparison with the previous year, foreign resources
increased by CZK 412.6 million, the reasons of the growth were a shortterm loan from a sister company and advance payments from customers
intended for the financing of the production and stock in the particular
production programs. The debt towards the banks and leasing companies was annually reduced by CZK 616.4 million. In passive accruals, the
company showed the items amounting to CZK 247.4 million.

investments, development programs,
and research & development
Investment and development activities were in compliance with the longterm strategy of development of the company. In the last year, the company continued in investing to the projects of KC-390, CSeries, and the
implementation of production of composite parts. In the year 2015, work
on the engineering and development of the L-39NG jet trainer aircraft fully

started. To ensure smooth production of leading edges of the CS100/300
aircraft, Aero has built a second line for the assembly of the leading edge.
In the year 2015, 5-axial horizontal milling CNC machining palette centre
was delivered, which will be able to machine parts with the length of 7.5
m, and Aero has also built a system for processing waste from the milling
process. The contribution of the above-mentioned investments will consist in fast and precision machining and improvement of handling of waste
originated during mechanical machining. Further significant investments
were directed to upgrading of existing machines and processes that will
ensure competitiveness of Aero in the years to come. During the year 2015,
the company focused on the preparation of investment projects, the implementation of which should start in the years 2016-2017.
In previous years, Aero succeeded in obtaining grants for the financing of the development from EU funds. For the development of parts
of the KC-390 military transportation multi-purpose aircraft, the
costs of which are expected to be in the amount of CZK 1,200 million, Aero drew the support of a grant within the TIP program in the
years 2012-2015 in the amount of CZK 115 million. In the year 2012,
grant from European funds was approved for Aero in the "POTENTIAL" program for the investment in the extension of the advanced
aircraft parts engineering/development facility. The total amount of
the grant provided was CZK 96 million, and Aero drew it in the years
2013-2015. In connection with the commencement of serial production of the fixed leading edge for the wings of the CS100/300 transportation aircraft, Aero received a grant from European funds in the
"INNOVATION" program to build a facility in the amount of CZK 48.8
million; this grant partially covered the costs for the second assembly
line for the CS100/300 aircraft leading edge and for the purchase
of machines necessary for the production of this aircraft.

in 2015, aero made a great
progress in development
of l-39ng aircraft.

”
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financial results of the company

human resources

environment

integrated management system (ims)

In the area of human resources management, the company thus
focused in particular on optimisation of capacity requirements of
the business. The company also intensified its collaboration with
secondary technical schools and universities both in the form of
special scholarship programs and through classical internships for
students. We have also managed to start several development
programs, such as internal quality engineering academy.

In 2015, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE discharged 7.6 tons of emissions into the atmosphere (of that 7.2 tons of volatile organic compounds, 0.38 tons of nitrogen oxides and 0.23 tons of solid particles).
The paint shop and related operations were the largest source of
emissions. Measurements of all sources showed that emission
limits were met in 2015. No air pollution fee was imposed for 2015.

In 2015, there were two significant changes directly in the IMS
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. Integrated Quality System was
extended for requirements of ISO 50001:2011 – Energy Management System (EnMS), which is generally focused on consumption
and saving of energies. Standard BS 25999-2:2007 was during
recertification changed into ISO 22301:2012 in April 2015. Newly
used standard is highly focused for risk evaluation and related
mitigation activities. ISO 9001:2008 scope was extended for airport
operation in October 2015.

The trend of considerable growth of the number of employees continued in 2014. In the area of human resources management, the company thus focused in particular on new recruitment and on the related
adaptation program, including establishment of necessary training facilities. The company also intensified its collaboration with secondary
technical schools and universities by offering fellowship programs for
students. The company received a second place award in the prestigious Sodexo Employer of the Region competition for the Central Bohemian Region. The average number of employees at Aero in 2015 was
1,848 (1,938 including agency employees) and the total number of employees as of 31 December 2015 reached 1,794 (1,852 including agency
employees). 197 new employees were hired for qualified labourer and
technical positions designated for the preparation and implementation of both existing and new production programs. The company plans
to create 200 new job openings in 2016. Total fluctuation in 2014 was
13%, which is 4.8% more than in 2013. Average gross salary was CZK
33,833. Aero spent CZK 7,913,119 in total on employee education
(including labour costs reimbursed from grant programs). The development costs per employee thus amounted to CZK 4,189 in 2015.

In 2015, Aero produced 1,720 tons of waste, including 645 tons
of hazardous waste. The amount of CZK 1,634,525 was spent on
waste disposal. Aero drew 106.2 thousand m3 of underground
water in 2015 (of that 98.5 m3 for industrial technology). The fees
for underground water consumption amounted to CZK 310,842.
Fees charged for waste water discharge amounted to CZK 15,947,
including CZK 15,947 for the discharged pollution and CZK 0 for the
volume of the waste water.

197 new employees were hired for qualified
labourer and technical positions in 2015.

1,852

Total number of 1,852
people worked for Aero
by the end of 2015.
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Integrated Quality System is still established on requirements
of ISO 9001:2008, AS 9100C, ISO 14001:2004, OHSAS 18001:2007,
ISO 22301:2012, ISO 27001:2005, ISO 50001:2011, AQAP 2110 (ČOS
051655), EASA Part21 sub J, EASA Part 21 sub G, EASA Part145 and
EASA Part147.
Aero is also NADCAP accreditation holder for following special
processes
- HT (Heat treatment), since 2008
- NDT (Non Destructive testing), since 2009
- NADCAP COM (Composites), since 2013
NADCAP accreditation for composite production was extended
for 12 months and accreditation for NDT was extended for 24
months. Aero lost accreditation of NADCAP CP in July 2015.
Re-accreditation is planned for May 2016.

197

Main documents of IMS are managed by Director of Quality Assurance. Management representative for IMS is directly sub-ordinate
to the CEO of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., and is organizationally independent on creation of design, production documentation, production and sales of products. The organizational freedom
gives the authority to resolve matters related to IMS.
Compliance with mentioned standards had been verified by surveillance visits held by authorities.
Substantial changes have been performed in the management
organization chart, but with no direct impact on organization. There
were no major personnel changes of Company Management team.
Management team was reinforced with new member on QC Director Operations – Mr. Ian David Beckett (directly reporting to COO).
Several middle management position in Operations division are solved “as managed by deputies” due organization changes in division
and finishing of contract on position Director of Parts production
and Director of Supply Chain.
Major changes in the Organization Chart of AVA have positive
influence on sensation and authority of Integrated Management
System and revival is notable as well in other processes, departments.
From IMS perspective year 2015 was successful. AVA completed
4 recertification/renewal audits and there was fully certified the
new system ISMS as per ISO 50001:2011.
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l-159a
l-159 is a light
multi-role
combat aircraft
designed for
a variety of
air-to-air,
air-to-ground
and reconnaissance missions.
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management system of the company

organisational structure

ladislav ŠimeK
President & CEO

michal flÍdr
VP Finance

tomas vlčeK
Director HR

zdeněK mleJneK
Dir. Quality assur.

petr ŘehoŘ
Director Strategy

david pacola
Director Airport

david pacola
Director Security

operations division

aerostructures division

defence & mro division

engineering division

hagen helm
COO

moniKa KoWalczyKovÁ
VP Aerostructures

Jan Štechr
EVP Defence & MRO

gerrard mcclusKey
VP Engineering

diego manreza tomaz
Director Business excelence

Josef ŠonsKÝ
Director BD & Sales

petr Kudrna
VP D&MRO Programs

michal KaprÁleK
Director - Design

martin hampl
Assembly Operations

michal Krofta
Deputy Program Director

JaKub foJtÍK
Director BD & Sales

tomÁŠ hibŠ
Stress

Development Programs

martin cerha
Director Quality control

martin ŽaloudÍK
Configuration

vladimÍr müller
Director Manufacturing
hagen helm
Supply Chain

JiŘÍ linKa
Dir. Production & Maintenance

ian becKett
Director Quality

moliŠ trnobransKÝ
Dir. Development & Operations

board of directors as of 31 december 2015

management of aerostructures division

Ladislav Šimek
Chairman
Dominika Kalinová, Petr Brychta Members

Monika Kowalczyková
Josef Šonský

supervisory board as of 31 december 2015

Michal Krofta

Zdeněk Sýkora
Jan Borýsek, Jan Kříž

Chairman
Members

VP Aerostructures
Director of Business
Development & Sales
Deputy Program Director
of Production Programs
Development Programs

top management as of 31 december 2015

management of defence & mro division

Ladislav Šimek
Michal Flídr
Petr Řehoř
Tomáš Vlček
David Pacola
Zdeněk Mlejnek
David Pacola

Jan Štechr
Petr Kudrna
Jakub Fojtík
Martin Cerha
Jiří Linka
Miloš Trnobranský

President
VP Finance
Director of Strategic Projects
Director of Human Resources
Director of Security
Director of Quality Assurance
Director of Airport Operations

management of operations division
Hagen Helm
Diego Manreza Tomaz
Martin Hampl
Vladimír Müller
Hagen Helm
Ian Beckett
Jiří Hubálek

JiŘÍ hubÁleK
Dir. Manufact. Engineering

Chief Operations Officer
Director of Business Excellence
Assembly Operations
Director of Manufacturing
Supply Chain Management
Director of Quality
Director of Manufacturing Engineering
Facility Management & Maintenance

EVP Defence & MRO
VP Defence & MRO Programs
Director of Business Development & Sales
Director of Quality Control
Director of Production & Maintenance
Director of Development & Operations

management of engineering division
Gerrard McCluskey
Michal Kaprálek
Tomáš Hibš
Martin Žaloudík

VP Engineering
Director of Design
Head of Stress
Head of Configuration

Dir. Facility Management

”

there has been a significant
change in the management of the company
in may 2016, when giuseppe giordo has been
appointed as the new president and ceo.

”
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wing

WING (Ways of Improvement Navigate us to Growth) is a management system of Aero Vodochody developed and implemented in
2011. Through implementation and subsequent development of the
WING system, Aero wants:
for its customers
to create a management standard containing convincing guarantees allowing us to maintain the position of a top supplier in the
long-term.
for its suppliers
to offer a framework for the creation of a responsible and efficiently
built partnership.
for its employees
to introduce an environment where desirable and undesirable behaviour is unambiguously defined and where a transparent and coherent relationship between the excellent performance of an
individual and of the company exists simultaneously.
structure of the Wing system
The WING system consists of basic parts – principles, management
cornerstones, and tools.

cornerstones

what is the purpose of the wing manual?

saving and activities

Contain the most important approaches supporting management of
the company. Guarantors manage the methodology of the individual cornerstones. Champions provide training related to the development and deepening of cornerstones.

The WING Manual documents the structure of WING and introduces
basic features of the individual components of the system.

The WING system tool labelled Kaizen – Minor Improvements,
generated a total 351 improvement suggestions filed by employees
in 2015, generating a total savings of CZK 12.244.973 CZK.

"Lean" thinking

Strategic alignment of objectives

management cornerstones
Project management

Risk management

Management of constraints

It is designed to be used for basic familiarization with the system’s
organization and with its status, both for the customers and the
suppliers, and for the employees of Aero. The WING manual is at the
level of interpretation and the Company Quality Manual is superior
to organizational guidelines and instructions.
More detailed information is included in the standards and guidelines governing individual activities in Aero.

tools
Describe the innovative procedures for the execution and support
of management activities that are applied at Aero to a greater
extent.
5S

SPC

KAIZEN

TPM

SMED

VSM

A comprehensive assessment of the WING System implementation
and application was executed in 2015 with the purpose of identification of gaps and best practices, several actions and improvement
projects then were defined and implemented leading to intensification of continuous improvement with regard to the strategic objectives defined.
Throughout 2015, knowledge and practical use of the tools offered
by the WING system was systematically strengthened. This was
mainly achieved by training of Aero’s workforce – 263 employees
underwent systematic training, the goal in 2016 is to have 0 non
trained employees in 2016.

tools

basic principles
Define the principles that control the behaviour and the decisionmaking of employees of Aero.
Value

Effective planning

Quality

Time

FMEA

Quality teams

Kaizen

3P

EVM

Kaizen week

RCCA

Visual management

basic principles
Proactive behaviour

Positive attitude

Collaboration/Teamwork

263 employees underwent systematic training,
the goal in 2016 is to have 0 non trained
employees in 2016.
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263

351

The WING system tool labelled Kaizen – Minor
Improvements, generated a total 351 improvement
suggestions filled by employees in 2015.
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confederation of the czech aviation industry

list of ccai members as of 31. december 2015
The Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry (CCAI), of which
Aero is a founding member, was established on June 9, 2011 and
reflects the rich history and diversity of the Czech aviation industry.
CCAI is a network of aviation manufacturers, universities, and other
institutions connected with the aerospace industry in the Czech Republic. Core activities of CCAI members include production and integration of aerostructures; development and production of civil
aircraft engines; development, production and repair of aircraft
technology, avionics and systems; production of galleys and aircraft
interiors; and the manufacture of composite and machined parts,
including surface treatments.
As of 31 December 2015, CCAI consisted of twenty aircraft manufacturers, four universities, and four institutions providing aviation
training, education, and research and development services for
other Confederation members.

CCAI members are recognizable for performance excellence and efficiency in global supply chain as preferred OEM partners. Members
are fully qualified for aviation design, production and repairs and verified by aviation certifications and approvals. Its technical expertise
is derived from will-tested processes, aviation routine and experience based on the involvement in worldwide aviation programs.

the confederation of the czech aviation
industry has these priority goals:
•
•
•
•

Increase competitiveness of the Czech aviation industry
Extend cooperation within CCAI, integrate capabilities and expertise
HR development and support in the aviation industry
Contribute to harmonize business environment

CCAI contributes to the strengthening of the competitiveness of the
Czech aviation industry, carries out projects in the areas of human
resources management and aviation education, the development
of supply chains, and integration of delivery capacity.

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
www.aero.cz

LOM Praha s.p.
www.lompraha.cz

LA Composite, s.r.o.
www.lacomposite.com

ATG s.r.o.
www.atg.cz

maxmechanik s.r.o.
www.maxmechanik.eu

Engineering Academy of the Czech Republic
www.ckto.cz/eacr/

BEKO Engineering, spol. s.r.o.
www.beko-engineering.cz

Quittner & Schimek s.r.o.
www.qscomp.cz

Institute of Aerospace Engineering, VUT Brno
www.lu.fme.vutbr.cz

Česká letecká servisní a.s.
www.ceslet.cz

Ray Service a.s.
www.rayservice.cz

Aerospace Engineering dept., CTU Praha
www3.fs.cvut.cz

Česká zbrojovka a.s.
www.czub.cz

Air Navigation Services
www.rlp.cz

Flying Academy s.r.o.
www.flyingacademy.com

Saab Czech s.r.o.
www.saabczech.cz

Zodiac Galleys Europe s.r.o.
www.driessen.com

GE Aviation Czech s.r.o.
www.geaviation.cz

Skyleader Aircraft
www.skyleader.aero

University of Defence
www.unob.cz

CHARVÁT AXL, a.s.
www.axl.cz

Speel Praha s.r.o.
www.speel.cz

University College of Business
www.vsopraha.cz

Jihlavan a.s.
www.jihlavan.cz

Startech s.r.o.
www.startech-ricany.cz

Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance
Czech Republic, www.lrqa.cz

Air Navigation Services
of the Czech Republic

EXOVA METECH s.r.o.
http://www.exovametech.com/cz/

Four universities from the whole
Czech Republic are part of CCAI.
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As of 31 December 2015,
CCAI consisted
of twenty-eight members.

Znojemské strojírny s.r.o.
www.strojirny.cz
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Kc-390
embraer Kc-390
is a new
medium-sized
multi-purpose
military
transport
aircraft,
designed
for cargo
and personnel
transport.
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history

beginnings

war production

indigenous jet trainers

modern history

Aero was founded on 25th February 1919 with its administrative seated in Prague’s Old Town and its production plant located in PragueBubeneč. Aero celebrated its 95th anniversary in 2014, ranking it
among the world’s oldest manufacturers of aviation technology. From
the very beginning, Aero focused on development and production of
aircraft and aircraft parts, as well as aircraft repairs. As early as 1919,
Aero launched its first in-house produced aircraft, the Aero A-1. Soon,
the Ministry of Defence ordered mass production of the aircraft.
Designed for military pilot training, Aero A-1 foresaw what would
become a typical product of the company in the distant future.

The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilised and
later developed during the German occupation, when Aero produced stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with full jigging for
reconnaissance and training missions (Focke-Wulf Fw 189 and
Siebel Si 204). Immediately after the war ended, the nationalised
Aero continued in the production and repairs of aircraft. Modified
German aircraft types were manufactured for the Czechoslovak Air
Force as well as civil aviation. Shortly after the war, a new remarkable indigenous type had been introduced - the high-performance,
twin-engine, all-metal Aero 45 four-seater.

expansion

the jet age

More powerful training aircraft types followed, and after production
had been moved to new facilities in the Prague district of Vysočany,
the basis for a new family of reconnaissance, bomber and training
biplanes was laid down by the Aero A-11 and A-12. Military pilots
soon became famous for breaking records and winning races in Aero
aircraft. Aero, at that time a private enterprise owned by Dr. Vladimir
Kabeš, became the main contractor for the Ministry of Defence and
the Ministry of Public Works (civil aviation).
The first foreign customers soon followed suit, starting with Finland.
Between the two world wars, Aero achieved a number of Czechoslovak firsts: it built a prototype of the first indigenous fighter airplane,
designed the first dedicated cabin transport aircraft, the first twinengine aircraft, the first seaplane with indigenously designed floats,
introduced a braced high-wing monoplane, and also pioneered
a practical design of a wooden cantilever wing structure.

In 1953, new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft production
were built in Vodochody and started operation in the same year. The
production, in which several Czechoslovak aviation plants were
involved, focused on a large-scale series production of MiG-15 aircraft built under a license and its derivatives. The supersonic MiG-19
and MiG-21 aircraft were manufactured by Aero throughout the
1960s and 1970s, paving the way in production capabilities to indigenous jet trainer programs - the L-29 Delfin and the L-39 Albatros.

In the second half of the 1950s, the need for jet trainer aircraft became more and more urgent. Concentrated efforts in developing
an optimized airframe and indigenous jet engine within the
Czechoslovak aircraft industry resulted in the maiden flight of the
L-29 in 1959. The definitive step on Aero’s way to mass production
of jet trainers took place in the summer of 1961 near Moscow: the
L-29 Delfin won comparative testing of three different prototypes
and was declared the most suitable trainer in Eastern Bloc countries. Production and deliveries continued smoothly for the ten
following years, after which the second generation, a more powerful and more efficient L-39 had been developed. Production of the
L-39 occupied Aero’s workshops and assembly halls during 1970s
and 1980s. A number of air forces around the world still utilise the
excellent tutoring quality of this affordable airplane.

In 2000, Aero set off in a new direction and entered into its first
cooperation program - the entire S-76 helicopter ready for installation of dynamic parts for the American company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation. As of January 4, 2007, the private equity group
Penta became a sole shareholder of Aero and in the same year successfully finished its restructuring process. Aero has opened its
doors to the global market and has begun acquiring additional cooperation programs, including the first risk-sharing programs. The
company has thus become a top-class partner of leading aerospace
manufacturers. Stabilization of the company allowed it to return to
the tradition of development and production of jet aircraft – in 2014,
Aero announced start of development of L-39NG, new generation of
legendary jet trainer.

97 years of tradition makes Aero one of the oldest aircraft manufacturers
in the world. From the very beginning, Aero focused on development and
production of aircraft and aircraft parts, as well as aircraft repairs. As early
as 1919, Aero launched its first in-house produced aircraft, the Aero A-1.
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97

The L-39 Albatros family expanded considerably in the course of
time, forming a perfect basis for further development. The advent
of 1990s brought incorporation of western avionics and standards
as well as the use of more powerful American engines and global
equipment, and with it a start of a new chapter in the life of the
company. The L-159 Combat & Training System includes the L-159
advanced training and light combat aircraft, integrated logistic
support, mission planning and debriefing, and a ground-based
training system.
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aero in date

1919

1921

1923

1925

1929

1932

1937

1938

aero – továrna létadel
(Aero – aircraft factory)
founded in Prague

a-10, first civilian
airliner

a-11, family of military
biplanes (bomber and
econnaissance aircraft)

De Havilland dh-50,
passenger aircraft built
under British license

a-34 “Blackbird”,
first in the line of light
sports and training
biplanes

a-100, family of military
biplanes (bomber and
econnaissance aircraft)

mb-200, all-metal
bomber aircraft
manufactured under
French license
(Marcel Bloch)

a-304, twin-engine low- c4/c-104 (Bucker
wing military aircraft
Bu-131 Jungmann)
training and aerobatic
biplane

a-1, first military
aircraft designed and
built by Aero

1939

1943

1947

c-3 (Siebel Si-204D),
twin-engine military
aircraft

ae-45, twin-engine civil Aero moved from
aircraft
Prague to a new plant
in vodochody

2002

2004

2005

Supply of l-159 aircraft
for the Czech
Air Force completed

ae270 aircraft obtained
an EASA Type Certificate

a-300, twin-engine
low-wing bomber
aircraft

1954

1958

1959

1962

1968

1986

1997

2000

2001

Maiden flight of mig-15,
jet fighter aircraft produced under Soviet license
(3,405 aircraft supplied
from 1954 to 1962)

Maiden flight of mig-19
Farmer, supersonic fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(103 aircraft supplied
from 1958 to 1962)

Maiden flight of l-29
delfín, first jet trainer
designed in Czechoslovakia (3,500 aircraft
supplied from 1963
to 1974)

Maiden flight of mig-21
Fishbed, supersonic
fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(194 aircraft supplied
from 1962 to 1972)

Maiden flight of in-house
designed and constructed
jet trainer l-39 albatros
(more than 2,900
aircraft supplied from
1971 to 1999)

Maiden flight of in-house
designed and constructed
jet trainer l-39ms
– exported as L-59 Super
Albatros (60 aircraft supplied from 1992 to 1996)

Maiden flight of singleseat light combat
aircraft l-159 alca
(72 aircraft ordered
by the Czech Air Force)

First l-159 supplied
to the Czech Air Force

Start of production of f-18 Maiden flight of l-159b
Super Hornet gun bay
two-seat advanced
door for Boeing St. Louis training aircraft

2006

2007

2008

ae270 aircraft obtained
an FAA Type Certificate

Aero acquired by Penta
private equity group

Start of production
of door subassemblies
of embraer 170/190
for Latecoere

2009

First international
risk-sharing project
agreement signed for
bombardier c-series
and its fixed leading
Aero signed a contract with
edge development,
l-159t1 advanced trainers
SAAB to produce Jas-39
certification support
supplied to the Czech Air Force
gripen pylons
and production
Aero bought Rotortech
Composites Ltd.
Start of production of centre
wing box of c-27J spartan
for Alenia Aeronautica
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1953

Start of production of
passenger door polished Start of production of sets
skins for boeing 757
of parts and subassemStarting a joint-enter-prise
blies of boeing 767 for
Maiden flight of first
with Taiwanese AIDC
BAE SYSTEMS (currently
to develop and produce ae270 prototype
Spirit AeroSystems)
ae270 civil aircraft
Start of production of s-76
helicopter for Sikorsky
Aircraft Corporation

Aero signed a long-term
agreement regarding
post-warranty support
of the l-159 squadron

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Black Hawk uh-60m cockpit
production agreement
signed with Sikorsky

Aero partnered with
Embraer to develop,
design and produce Kc-390
aircraft. Aero is responsible
for design and production
of wing leading edge, technological development and
production of all seven
doors, ramp and rear
fuselage

PZL Mielec chose Aero
to supply international
version of Black Hawk
s-70i helicopter cockpits

Alenia Aermacchi
chose Aero to supply
airbus a321 14A section
fuselage panels

Start of development
First flight of re-engined
of l-39ng, new generation l-39 - demonstrator
of legendary L-39 aircraft
of the first stage of L-39NG

l-410ng Landing gear

Aero extended MessierBugatti-Dowty contract
by adding production
of airbus a320
Landing gear

2015

project

tecnam p2012 Landing gear
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black hawk
siKorsKy blacK
hawK helicopter is one
of the most
important and
most utilized
military technology of
the us army.
presently,
around 2,500
helicopters of
the h-60 family
are in service
at the military
forces of the
usa and other
states.
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statement of the supervisory board

In compliance with Section 447 of Act no. 90/2012 Coll., on business companies and cooperatives (Business Corporations Act) the
Supervisory Board reviewed the ordinary financial statements
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. for the financial period from
1. January 2015 to 31. December 2015.
Having discussed the ordinary financial statements and having examined the accompanying auditor's opinion, the Supervisory Board
recommended at its meeting on 23 June 2015 that the ordinary
financial statements for the financial period from 1. January 2015
to 31. December 2015 should be approved by the General meeting
of the company.

Furthermore, the Supervisory Board recommended to the General
meeting that the allocation of profit generated in the financial
period from 1. January 2015 to 31. December 2015 should be approved as proposed by the Board of Directors, namely:
The profit of CZK 37,813,337.73 should be allocated as follows:
The sum of CZK 37,813,337.73 to be transferred from account no.
431 “Profit/Loss in Approval Process” to account no. 428 – Retained earnings from previous years.
In Odolena Voda on 23 June 2016

Zdeněk Sýkora
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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independent auditor’s report

shareholders of the company aero vodochody aerospace a.s.:
I. We have audited the accompanying Final Account of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., which consists of the balance sheet as of
31 December 2015, profit and loss statement for the year ending by
the date of 31 December 2015, the cash flow statement for the year
ending by the date of 31 December 2015, and the annex to this Final
Account that contains a summary of the significant accounting
methods used and other explanatory information. The data about
the company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE are shown in Section
1 of the Annex to this Final Account.
II. Responsibility of the statutory body of the accounting unit for the
Final Account
The statutory body of the company is responsible for the preparation of the Final Account, which provides the true and fair picture in
accordance with the Czech accounting regulations, and for such an
internal control system that the statutory body deems necessary
for the preparation of the Final Account so that it is free from
significant inaccuracies caused by a fraud or an error.
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auditor's responsibility

auditor's statement

It is our responsibility to provide statement to this Final Account on
the basis of our audit. We have performed the audit in accordance
with the Act on Auditors, International Auditor Standards, and with
related application clauses of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic. In accordance with these regulations, we are obliged to
abide by ethical requirements and to plan and perform the audit so
that to acquire an adequate level of certainty that the Final Account
is free of significant inaccuracies.

In our opinion, the Final Account provides a true and fair picture of
assets and liabilities of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. to the
date of 31 December 2015 and the costs and revenues and financial
result of the Company, and of the cash flow for the year ending by
the date of 31 December 2015 in accordance with the Czech
accounting regulations.

The audit comprises the execution of the auditor procedures to
acquire evidence data about the amounts and data presented in the
Final Account. The selection of the procedures depends on the
auditor's judgment, including also the assessment of the risks of
significant incorrectness of data shown in the Final Account caused by a fraud or an error. When assessing these risks, the auditor
shall consider internal control system relevant for the preparation
of the Final Account giving a true and fair picture. The objective of
this assessment is to propose appropriate auditing procedures, not
to comment on the effectiveness of internal control of the accounting entity. The audit also includes the assessment of suitability of
the accounting methods used, the adequacy of the accounting
assessments performed by the management, as well as the assessment of the overall presentation of the Final Account.
We believe that the evidence information we have obtained provides
sufficient and suitable basis to express our statement.

other information
Other information is the information shown in the annual report
outside the Final Account and our Audit Report. Other information
is the responsibility of the statutory body.
Our statement to the Final Account is neither related to the other
information nor we provide any special statement to it. However, it
is part of our duties related to auditing the Final Account to read the
other information and consider whether the other information
included in the Annual Report is in significant non-compliance with
the Final Account or our understanding of the accounting entity
obtained during the audit of the Final Account, whether the Annual
Report is compiled in accordance with the legal regulations, or whether such information is otherwise not appearing to be significantly
incorrect. If, on the basis of the work carried out, we find out that it
is not the case, we are required to provide the facts found in our report. Within the procedures shown, we have not found anything like
this in the other information we received. Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
Registration No. 401

Radek Pav, statutární auditor
Registration No. 2042

24 June 2016
Prague, Czech Republic
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cs100
cseries
aircraft is
a new singleaisle aircraft
for short
and mediumhaul commercial traffic.
cs100 version
can carry 100
passengers.
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financial statement

gross

current
year
allowances

net

prior year
2014
net

a.

total assets
stocK subscription receivable

8 856 471
0

-2 774 590

6 081 881
0

5 686 753

b.

fixed assets

3 917 152

-2 238 654

1 678 498

1 886 153

b. i.
B. I. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

intangible assets
Foundation and organization expenses
Research and development
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets in progress
Advances granted for intangible assets

495 593
0
0
245 281
99 112
0
1 166
150 034
0

-288 788
0
0
-228 204
-59 998
0
-586
0
0

206 805
0
0
17 077
39 114
0
580
150 034
0

402 312
0
0
16 886
198 207
0
790
186 429
0

b. ii.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

tangible assets
Land
Constructions
Separate movable items and groups of movable items
Perennial crops
Livestock
Other tangible assets
Tangible assets in progress
Advances granted for tangible assets
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property

3 420 482
18 206
1 071 450
2 007 609
0
0
13 451
304 007
5 759
0

-1 949 866
0
-565 987
-1 378 183
0
0
-4 716
-980
0
0

1 470 616
18 206
505 463
629 426
0
0
8 735
303 027
5 759
0

1 482 739
16 906
486 997
536 609
0
0
10 044
387 176
45 007
0

b. iii.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7

financial investments
Subsidiaries
Associates
Other long-term securities and interests
Loans and borrowings to subsidiaries and associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term investments in progress
Advances granted for long-term investments

1 077
1 077
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1 077
1 077
0
0
0
0
0
0

1 102
1 102
0
0
0
0
0
0

58 | 59

gross

current
year
allowances

net

prior year
2014
net

c.

current assets

4 509 034

-535 936

3 973 098

3 534 741

c. i.
C. I. 1
2
3
4
5
6

inventory
Materials
Work in progress and semi-finished production
Finished products
Livestock
Goods
Advances granted for inventory

3 302 872
1 497 042
1 284 668
0
0
5 284
515 878

-506 211
-402 925
-98 775
0
0
0
-4 511

2 796 661
1 094 117
1 185 893
0
0
5 284
511 367

2 245 088
1 130 924
1 096 270
0
0
3 087
14 807

c. ii.
C. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

long-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners
Long-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Deferred tax asset

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

c. iii.
C. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

short-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners
Social security and health insurance
Due from government - tax receivables
Short-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables

707 126
619 264
35 119
0
0
0
30 115
12 630
1 720
8 278

-29 725
-25 841
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-3 884

677 401
593 423
35 119
0
0
0
30 115
12 630
1 720
4 394

994 950
877 106
70 856
0
0
0
25 371
6 892
12 485
2 240

c. iv.
C. IV. 1
2
3
4

short-term financial assets
Cash
Bank accounts
Short-term securities and interests
Short-term financial assets in progress

499 036
7 760
491 276
0
0

0

499 036
7 760
491 276
0
0

294 703
5 760
288 943
0
0

d. i.
D. I. 1
2
3

accrued assets and deferred liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Unbilled revenue

430 285
187 513
64 726
178 046

0

430 285
187 513
64 726
178 046

265 859
138 027
110 155
17 677

0
0
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financial statement

current
year

prior year
2014

a.

total eQuity & liabilities
eQuity

6 081 881
1 482 777

5 686 753
1 442 242

a. i.
A. I. 1
2
3

basic capital
Registered capital
Own shares and own ownership interests (-)
Changes in basic capital

1 002 000
1 002 000
0
0

1 002 000
1 002 000
0
0

a. ii.
A II. 1
2
3
4
5
6

capital funds
Share premium (agio)
Other capital funds
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities
Gain or loss on revaluation of corporation transformations
Gain or loss on corporation transformations
Gain or loss on revaluation upon corporation transformations

1 484
0
0
53
0
1 431
0

-1 837
0
0
-3 268
0
1 431
0

a iii.
A III. 1
2

funds created from profit
Reserve fund
Statutory and other funds

2 696
0
2 696

3 295
0
3 295

a. iv.
IV. 1
2
3

profit (loss) for the previous years
Retained earnings for the previous years
Accumulated loss of previous years
Other retained earnings for previous years

438 784
438 784
0
0

212 307
212 362
-55
0

a. v. 1.
a. v. 2.

profit (loss) for the year (+ / -)
approved decision on advances for profit distribution (-)

37 813

226 477

60 | 61

current
year

prior year
2014

4 553 308

4 080 426

334 663
0
0
0
334 663

225 105
0
0
0
225 105

64 307
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
64 307
0

65 644
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
65 644
0

b.

liabilities

b. i.
B. I. 1
2
3
4

provisions
Provisions created under special legislation
Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for corporate income tax
Other provisions

b. ii.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

long-term liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners
Long-term advances received
Bonds payable
Long-term notes payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability

b. iii.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

current liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners
Liabilities to employees
Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance
Due to government – taxes and subsidies
Short-term advances received
Bonds payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities

2 013 368
403 948
136 532
0
0
43 645
26 963
33 089
1 080 857
0
263 622
24 712

1 028 684
588 236
0
0
0
45 323
25 877
6 214
252 159
0
86 825
24 050

b. iv.
B. IV. 1
2
3

bank loans and borrowings
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Borrowings

2 140 970
815 599
1 325 371
0

2 760 993
2 552 488
208 505
0

c. i.
c. i. 1
2

accrued liabilities and deferred assets
accruals
Deferred income

45 796
1 648
44 148

164 085
62
164 023
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financial statement

A.

b.
B.
B.

Revenue from sale of goods
Cost of goods sold

730 757
498 300

119 271
90 732

+

gross margin

232 457

28 539

ii.
II. 1
2
3

production
Revenue from sale of finished products and services
Change in inventory produced internally
Own work capitalized
production related consumption
Consumption of material and energy
Services

3 466 487
3 240 242
122 977
103 268
2 109 515
1 288 397
821 118

4 432 666
3 809 838
498 958
123 870
2 807 678
2 023 798
783 880

value added

1 589 429

1 653 527

1
2

c.
C.
C.
C.
C.

f.
F.
F.
G.
H.
I.

prior year
2014

I.

+

D.
E.

current
year

1
2
3
4

iii.
III. 1
2
1
2
IV.
V.

personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of corporation management
Social security and health insurance
Other social costs

1 019 591
747 381
9 146
246 582
16 482

1 036 798
766 085
2 521
251 865
16 327

Taxes and charges
5 207
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets
122 506
revenue from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials
468 980
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold
446 583
Materials sold
22 397
net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials sold
403 143
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold
392 518
Materials sold
10 625
Change in provisions and allowances relating to operations and in prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) 183 874
Other operating revenues
869 958
Other operating expenses
902 855
Transfer of operating revenues
0
Transfer of operating expenses
0

4 333
99 874
147 706
111 143
36 563
121 553
107 029
14 524
3 080
1 716 186
1 747 238
0
0

*
J.

K.
L.
M.
N.
O.
P.

VI.
vii.
VII. 1
2
3
VIII.
IX.
X.
XI.
XII.
*

Q.
Q.
Q.

prior year
2014

profit or loss on operating activities

291 191

504 543

Revenue from sale of securities and interests
Securities and interests sold
income from financial investments
Income from subsidiaries and associates
Income from other long-term securities and interests
Income from other financial investments
Income from short-term financial assets
Expenses related to financial assets
Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Change in provisions and allowances relating to financial activities
Interest income
Interest expense
Other finance income
Other finance cost
Transfer of finance income
Transfer of finance cost

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1 147
7 455
0
3 246
62 708
386 237
549 992
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2 618
23 089
0
3 969
45 348
92 798
309 748
0
0

-229 525

-278 800

tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities
- due
- deferred

23 211
23 211
0

0
0
0

profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation

38 455

225 743

Extraordinary gains
Extraordinary losses
tax on extraordinary profit or loss
- due
- deferred

674
1 316
0
0
0

3 481
2 747
0
0
0

extraordinary profit or loss

-642

734

0

0

profit or loss on financial activities
1
2

**
XIII.
R.
s.
S. 1.
S. 2.
*
1
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current
year

Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)

***

profit or loss for the year (+/-)

37 813

226 477

****

profit or loss before taxation

61 024

226 477
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financial statement

current
year

prior year
2014

cash flows from operating activities
profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-)

z.
a.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

a *
a.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

2.
2.
2.
2.
2.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

225 743

adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Foreign exchange differences
(Zisk) / ztráta z prodeje stálých aktiv
Úrokové náklady a výnosy
Ostatní nepeněžní operace (např. přecenění na reálnou hodnotu do HV, přijaté dividendy)

301 399
128 653
28 887
109 558
25 583
-54 065
59 462
3 321

146 342
99 874
27 182
-28 164
2 399
-4 114
41 379
7 786

čistý peněžní tok z provozní činnosti před zdaněním, změnami pracovního kapitálu,
placenými úroky a mimořádnými položkami

363 065

372 085

226 718
-598 533
274 019
-168 962
-149 358
869 551

-757 394
-744 700
40 951
-125 306
-12 647
84 308

a **

čistý peněžní tok z provozní činnosti před zdaněním, placenými úroky a mimořádnými položkami

589 783

-385 309

A. 3. 1.
A. 4. 1.
A. 5. 1.

Placené úroky
Placené daně
Příjmy a výdaje spojené s mimořádnými položkami

-59 871
0
-877

-49 415
0
734

a ***

čistý peněžní tok z provozní činnosti

529 035

-433 990
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prior year
2014

-324 877
446 583
35 737
2 451
0

-501 989
111 143
6 656
16 454
0

159 894

-367 736

-483 997

1 263 605

0
-599
0

-400 000
0
239 732

-484 596

863 605

204 333
294 703
499 036

61 879
232 824
294 703

cash flows from investing activities
61 666

změna stavu nepeněžních složek pracovního kapitálu
Změna stavu zásob
Změna stavu obchodních pohledávek
Změna stavu ostatnich pohledávek a přechodných účtů aktiv
Změna stavu obchodních závazků
Změna stavu ostatních závazků, krátkodobých úvěrů a přechodných účtů pasiv

current
year

B.
B.
B.
B.
B.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

b ***

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans granted
Interest received
Dividends received
net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
cash flows from financing activities

C. 1.

Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans

C. 2. 1.
C. 2. 2.
C. 2. 3.

Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
Profit shares paid
Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash

c

net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

f.
p.
r.

***

net increase (decrease) in cash
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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1. description of the company

2. basic of presentation of the financial statements

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated on 15 December 2011 under the name of TULAREO a.s. in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic
and the business registration number (IČ) is 24194204. The Company is involved in cooperation in producing helicopters and aircraft parts,
foreign trade of military products, development, production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat jets, and other
aircraft related work.

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines as
applicable for 2014 and 2013.

shareholders holding a 10% or greater interest in the company’s basic capital are as follows:
TULAROSA a.s.
100 %

The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2015 and 2014 financial statements are as follows:

The parent company and the sole shareholder of the Company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located at Na Florenci 2116/15
Prague 1, Czech Republic. The ultimate parent company is PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate financial statements for the period from 1. 1. 2015 to 31. 12. 2015.
Consolidated financial statements pursuant to the Czech accounting standards are prepared by TULAROSA a.s.’s parent company,
OAKFIELD a.s. The Company is included in its consolidated group. The Company is included in the consolidated group of OAKFIELD a.s.
members of the statutory bodies as at 31 december 2015 were as follows:
Board of Directors
Chairman:
Ing. Ladislav Šimek, MBA
Member:
Ing. Petr Brychta
Member:
Ing. Dominika Kalinová
Supervisory Board
Chairman:
Member:
Member:

Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Ing. Jan Kříž
Jan Borýsek

3. summary of significant accounting policies

a) intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related expenses.
Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized over their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets
(with a cost of less than CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried only in a subsidiary ledger.
Internally-developed intangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labour costs and
production overheads.
amortization
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights

Years
3
per contract

An allowance is created against intangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their
carrying amount.
No changes were recorded to the Commercial Register in 2015.
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b) tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand are recorded at their acquisition cost, which consists of purchase price, freight,
customs duties and other related costs.

e) receivables
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value after allowance for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance
account are charged to income.

Internally-developed tangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labour costs and
production overheads.

f) derivatives
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other current liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement cost and are recorded with a corresponding credit to the ‘Other
capital funds account’ on the date of acquisition. The replacement cost of these assets is set on the basis of the cost known at the moment
of the respective asset acquisition.
The costs of technical improvements are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred.

Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives.

depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Construction
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and Fixtures
Other tangibles

Years
30 - 45
10 - 30
8 - 20
4 - 15
5 - 20

An allowance is created against tangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying
amount.
c) financial assets
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand and at bank.
Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership interests and shareholdings.
Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes the purchase price and direct costs related to the acquisition,
e.g. fees and commissions paid to agents and stock exchanges.
As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant influence are valued at acquisition cost. If there is a decrease
in the carrying value of long-term financial assets that are not revalued at the balance sheet date, the difference is considered a temporary
diminution in value and is recorded as an allowance.
d) inventory
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include
acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc).
Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard cost, which approximates actual. The cost of inventory produced
internally includes direct material and labour costs and production overhead costs. Production overhead costs include energy, repairs
and maintenance, telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production services and materials and are allocated based on
direct labour hours.
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The latter are designated as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value
of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow must offset, in whole or in part, the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from the
hedged item. In addition, there must be formal documentation of the hedging relationship at inception and the Company must prove that
the hedging relationship is highly effective. In all other cases, derivatives are recognized as held-for-trading.
Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are reported
in income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are also recognized in income, together with the change
in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges are taken to equity and reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective
portion of the hedge is reported in income.
g) equity
The basic capital of the Company is stated at the amount recorded in the Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court. Any
increase or decrease in the basic capital made pursuant to the decision of the General Meeting which was not entered in the Commercial
Register as at the financial statements date is recorded through changes in basic capital. Contributions in excess of basic capital are recorded
as share premium. Other capital funds are created pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.
In compliance with the Corporations Act and the Articles of Association the Company is no longer obliged to establish a legal reserve fund.
h) provisions and liabilities
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are carried at their nominal values. Amounts resulting from the revaluation of financial derivatives at fair value are shown in other payables.
Long-term and short-term loans are recorded at their nominal values. Any portion of long-term debt which is due within one year of the
balance sheet date is classified as short-term debt.
Contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the balance sheet because significant uncertainties exist with respect to the amount, title
or timing of the expected outflow of benefits are described in Note 18.
i) leases
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments and capitalizing the residual value of the leased assets when the lease
contract expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments paid in advance are recorded as prepaid expenses and amortized over
the lease term.
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j) foreign currency transactions
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns at the
exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. On the balance sheet date monetary items are adjusted to the exchange rates as published by the Czech National Bank as at 31 December.

4. fixed assets
a) intangible fixed assets (in czK thousands)
cost

Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses were charged or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.
k) recognition of revenues and expenses
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the
related goods or services occurs, regardless of when the related monetary flow arises.
The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or allowances against risks, losses or physical damage that are known
as at the financial statements’ date.

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
Total 2015
Total 2014

at beginning
of year
232 842
257 845
1 166
186 429
678 282
584 531

additions

disposals

transfers

64 207
64 207
95 310

-181 988
-64 908
-246 896
-1 559

12 439
23 255
-35 694
-

at end
of year
245 281
99 112
1 166
150 034
495 593
678 282

Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed contract method (or as specified in the contract).
accumulated depreciation
l) income tax
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by
the appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g. non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences
between book and tax depreciation, etc. In addition, the following items are taken into consideration: tax base decreasing items (donations),
tax deductible items (tax loss, research and development costs) and income tax reliefs.
The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate income tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.
m) subsidies
The subsidies to cover costs are recorded in other operating income upon receipt of the subsidy, observing the matching and accrual
principles applied to accounting for related costs. The subsidies for the acquisition of intangible and tangible fixed assets and technical
improvements, along with subsidies to cover interest included in the acquisition cost, either reduce the related acquisition cost or own work
capitalized. Received subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment enables the Company to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt
and utilization.

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
Total 2015
Total 2014

at beginning
of year
-215 956
-59 638
-376
-275 970
-261 437

additions

disposals

transfers

-12 248
-3 052
-210
-15 510
-14 533

-179 296
-64 908
-244 204
-1 559

181 988
64 908
246 896
1 559

The “use of emission allowances” is recorded as at the financial statements’ date contingent to the volume of the entity´s emissions in the
calendar year. The first free-of-charge acquisition is recorded as other liabilities, which are recognized into income at the time and in the
amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.
o) use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The Company management prepared these estimates and predictions based on all available relevant information. These estimates
and assumptions are based on information available as at the date of the financial statements and may differ from actual results.
p) subsequent events
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation is recognized
in the financial statements provided these events provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet.
If material events reflecting the facts occurring after the balance sheet date happened between the balance sheet date and the date of the
financial statements preparation the consequences of these events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements but not recognized in the financial statements.
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net book
value
17 077
39 114
580
150 034
206 805
402 312

Intangibles in progress as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 include, in particular, assets internally developed within the development for the
aircraft for the Brazilian producer Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer).
The total value of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was CZK 5,882 thousand and
CZK 5,711 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 216,725 thousand are fully amortized as at 31 December 2015.

n) emission allowances
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets, which are not depreciated and are valued at cost or replacement cost
when acquired free-of-charge.

at end
of year
-228 204
-59 998
-586
-288 788
-275 970
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b) tangible fixed assets (in czK thousands)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, tangibles in progress include in particular production tools for the Alenia and Embraer projects.

cost

The total value of small tangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, including small tangible fixed
assets located at delivery stations, was CZK 663,494 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2015. The total value of small tangible
fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, including small tangible fixed assets located at delivery stations,
was CZK 652,083 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2014.

Land
Construction
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in process
Advances for tangibles
Total 2015
Total 2014

at beginning
of year
31.12.2014
16 906
1 025 252
1 625 439
232 852
9 218
13 333
388 156
45 007
3 356 163
3 105 013

additions

disposals

transfers

316 955
60 469
377 424
427 465

-157 232
-223
-55 933
-99 717
-313 105
-176 315

46 198
297 389
166
118
-345 171
-

at end
of year
31.12.2015
16 906
1 071 450
1 765 596
232 629
9 384
13 451
304 007
5 759
3 420 482
3 356 163

accumulated depreciation

Lands
Construction
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2015
Total 2014

počáteční
zůstatek
31.12.2014
-538 255
-1 097 834
-92 577
-6 592
-3 289
-1 738 547
-1 707 320

odpisy

prodeje

vyřazení

Konečný
zůstatek

-27 732
-64 976
-11 536
-1 325
-1 427
-106 996
-85 341

-137 519
-10 795
-148 314
-105 470

157 232
223
10 795
168 250
159 584

-565 987
-1 143 096
-103 890
-7 917
-4 716
-1 825 606
-1 738 115

opravné
položky
31.12.2015
-123 280
-980
-124 260
-134 877

Účetní
hodnota
18 206
505 463
622 500
5 459
1 467
8 735
303 027
5 759
1 470 616
1 482 739

Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 1,025,246 thousand and CZK 734,480 thousand are fully depreciated as at 31 December 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
The Company has adjusted the carrying value of certain tangible assets for a diminution in value through an allowance charged against
income (see Note 7). As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the allowance was CZK 124,260 thousand and CZK 134,877 thousand, respectively.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, a part of non-production buildings with a cost of CZK 14,250 thousand and CZK 14,250 thousand and
a net book value of CZK 6,663 thousand and CZK 6,307 thousand, respectively were located outside the Company’s production plant
(accommodation facilities).
The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 688,380 thousand and their net book value was CZK 344,263 thousand
as at 31 December 2015. The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 457,261 thousand and their net book value was
CZK 213,332 thousand as at 31 December 2014. The easement relates to the general agreement for after warranty support for L-159 and
L-39 aircraft (see Note 18) and is not recorded in the Land Register.
As at 31 December 2015, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 141,949 thousand and the net book value amounted to CZK
89,947 thousand. As at 31 December 2014 the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 141,852 thousand and the net book value
amounted to CZK 90,915 thousand.
In 2015 and 2014, the Company received subsidies for fixed assets totalling CZK 80,257 thousand and CZK 67,539 thousand, respectively.

5. inventory
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has been written down to its estimated net realizable value by an allowance account. The allowance is determined by management based on an inventory aging analysis and the analysis of its future usability (see Note 7).

allowances as at 31.12.2015
(in czK thousands):
Ae270
L-39
L-59
L-159
Project Sikorsky
Other inventory
total

materials
35 414
58 120
44 112
200 190
31 281
33 808
402 925

work-in-progress, semi
-finished products and goods
21 532
4 794
228
50 826
3 317
18 078
98 775

Inventory is pledged as security to the benefit of Česká exportní banka a.s. and Komerční banka a.s. (See Note 13).
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advances granted
for inventory
3 154
1 357
4 511
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6. receivables

8. short term financial assets

Allowances against outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful were charged to income based on their analysis (see Note 7).
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, receivables overdue for more than 180 days totalled CZK 22,583 thousand and CZK 44,817 thousand,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had the following restricted cash balances (in CZK thousands):

currency
EUR
EUR
EUR
USD

amount in foreign currency (in thousands)
506
198
3 471
3 157

Účetní období 2015
amount in czK (in thousands)
13 682
5 351
93 802
78 376
191 211

In 2015 and 2014, the Company ceded receivables of CZK 790,294 thousand and CZK 1,657,842 thousand, respectively. In 2015 and 2014,
income from the ceded receivables amounted to CZK 788,466 thousand and CZK 1,655,304 thousand, respectively. Nominal values of these
receivables along with the income from the cession were included in other operating expenses or other operating revenues, as appropriate,
in the income statement.

bank
ČSOB, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
ČEB, a.s.
Total

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loans to related parties (see Note 21).
As at 31 December 2015, receivables from Sonaca, Sikorsky and Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) totalling CZK 50,362 thousand were pledged to secure provided loans (see Note 13). As at 31 December 2014, receivables from Sonaca, Sikorsky and Empresa
Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) totalling CZK 478,654 thousand were pledged to secure provided loans (see Note 13).

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see Note 13). As at 31 December 2015,
the Company had restricted cash balance of CZK 191,211 thousand.

Long- and short-term receivables from related parties (see Note 21).

Pursuant to a general agreement for financial services entered into by and between the Company and Komerční banka, a.s., on 23 September
2009, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 120,000 thousand. The overdraft was used and repaid on an ongoing basis during 2015;
its balance was CZK 0 thousand as at 31 December 2015 and CZK 101,480 thousand as at 31 December 2014.

7. allowances

Pursuant to an agreement for credit line and addenda thereto entered into by and between the Company and Česká spořitelna, a.s., on 9 August
2012, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand. The overdraft was used and repaid on an ongoing basis during
2015; its balance was CZK 0 thousand as at 31 December 2015 and CZK 21,807 thousand as at 31 December 2014.

Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets (see Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the allowance accounts (in CZK thousands):
allowances
against:
Tangible fixed assets
Inventory
Advances granted for inventory
Receivables – legal
Receivables – other
Total

balance at
31.12.2013
144 515
430 993
9 283
342
18 994
604 127

additions deductions
980
70 135
122
15 318
86 555

-10 618
-46 388
-217
-10
-2 140
-59 373

balance at
31.12.2014
134 877
454 740
9 188
332
32 172
631 309

Release of allowances against inventories has been related to their disposal and sale.

additions

deductions

86 322
4 623
90 945

-10 617
-39 362
-4 677
-39
-7 363
-62 058

balance at
31.12.2015
124 260
501 700
4 511
293
29 432
660 196

Pursuant to an agreement for the provision of loan, letters of credit and bank guarantees entered into by and between the Company and Československá obchodní banka, a.s., on 20 December 2013, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand. The Loan was used
on an ongoing basis during 2015; its balance was CZK 0 thousand as at 31 December 2015 and 31,279 thousand as at 31 December 2014. This
agreement was terminated by ČSOB as of 31 December 2015.
For deposits placed at related parties see Note 21.

9. other assets
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid rent, interest expenses, premiums and overhead costs,
which are charged to income for the year in which they were incurred.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, specific-purpose prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid expenses related to preparation and
implementation of production within the Embraer project for Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. and development programs of Defence
& MRO Division.
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10. equity

11. provisions

As at 31 December 2014, the basic capital of the Company consists of 5,010 ordinary registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand and is fully paid.

The movements in the provision accounts were as follows (in CZK thousands):
provisions

The movements in the capital accounts during 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Number of shares
Basic capital
Differences arising from
revaluation of assets and liabilities
Other funds
Retained earnings
Accumulated loss
Differences arising from
company transformation
Profit/Loss for the period

balance as
at 31.12.2013
5 010
1 002 000

increase

-11 419

-3 346

11 497

-3 268

3 346

-25

53

3 660
67 637
-55

144 725
-

-365
-

3 295
212 362
-55

226 422
55

-599
-

2 696
438 784
-

1 431

-

-

1 431

-

-

1 431

544 725

226 477

-544 725

226 477

37 813

-226 477

37 813

-

decrease

balance as
at 31.12.2014
5 010
1 002 000

increase
-

decrease

balance as
at 31.12.201
5 010
1 002 000

Other funds from profit represent a social fund.
In 2015, gain or loss on revaluation arose due to the revaluation of derivative transactions (see Note 15) and the revaluation of interest in the
subsidiary Clester Trading a.s.
The Annual General Meeting held on 10 July 2015 approved the distribution of the 2014 profit of the amount of CZK 226,477 for cover of the
accumulated loss of previous years in the amount of CZK 55 thousand and allocation of the remaining portion of the 2014 profit of CZK
226,422 thousand to retained earnings.
The Annual General Meeting held on 24 July 2014 approved the distribution of the 2013 profit in the form of dividend payment in the amount
of CZK 400,000 thousand and allocation of the remaining portion of the 2013 profit of CZK 144,725 thousand to retained earnings.

balance as
at 31.12.2013
Business transaction Iraq
Guarantee repairs of L-159 and L-159T1
Business transaction Tunisia and Algeria
5 747
Provision for L-39 flying hours
433
78 152
Staff bonuses
Accrued vacation
13 698
129 583
Business transaction Sikorsky
Business transaction Bulgaria
16 589
Business transaction Sonaca S.A.
439
Business transaction Alenia
Business transaction Black Hawk
8 378
Business transaction EMBRAER
Business transaction A321
Business transaction GBD Boeing
250
Total
253 269

additions deductions
9 291
433
56 999
87 656
39 334
2 135
12 993
7 407
3 060
974
11 054
231 336

-3 823
-433
-78 995
-84 628
-87 641
-42
-3 938
-259 500

balance as
at 31.12.2014
11 215
433
56 156
16 726
81 276
2 135
29 582
7 804
7 500
974
11 054
250
225 105

additions deductions
113 037
592
24 772
68 608
17 234
4 217
55 440
4 406
2 240
699
498
291 743

-63 238
-314
-3 466
-56 156
-16 726
-13 966
-1 068
-14 612
-1
-1 040
-11 348
-250
-182 185

balance as
at 31.12.2015
49 799
278
32 521
433
68 608
17 234
71 527
1 067
70 410
12 209
8 700
1 673
204
334 663

12. current and long-term liabilities
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company had overdue current liabilities totalling CZK 97,447 thousand and CZK 131,190 thousand,
respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular, supplies of material and services, which are charged to income for the year in which they were
incurred.
As at 31 December 2015, advance payments received include, in particular, advances related to development of L-39NG aircraft and to sales
of L-159 aircraft. As at 31 December 2014, advance payments received include, in particular, advances from the Brazilian firm Empresa
Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) for the production of aerostructures.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company had liabilities of CZK 26,936 thousand and CZK 25,877 thousand, respectively owing to
social security and health insurance premiums not yet mature.
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In 2012 and 2014 the Company and SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE entered into agreements for loans with fixed interest rates. Loan balance with SG
EQUIPMENT FINANCE as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):
2015
2014
due date
interest rate
amount in czK thousands amount in czK thousands
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
15. 10. 2017
1.025%
7 915
12 048
15. 11. 2019
0.449%
10 282
13 093
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
15. 12. 2019
0.449%
18 195
16 510
4/2020
0.449%
50 862
42 017
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
87 254
83 668
Total
Less current portion
22 947
18 024
64 307
65 644
Net

As at 31 December 2015, the above loans were secured by the pledge as follows:
- Pledge of receivables (see Note 6);
- Pledge of current accounts (see Note 8);
- Blank bills of exchange issued;
- Guarantee issued by Penta Investments Limited up to CZK 378 million;
- Pledge of inventories (see Note 5);
- Pledge of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.’s shares pursuant to the agreement with the parent company TULAROSA a.s.;
- Pledge of real estate (see Note 4b).
- Pledge of movables
- Guarantee of Penta Investments Limited
Interest expense on all received bank loans totalled CZK 60,781 thousand and CZK 45,348 thousand for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The long-term portion of the loans is classified within "Other long-term liabilities". The short-term portion of the loans is classified within
"Other current liabilities".

Based on the above revolving loan agreement for financing of the Sikorsky program, the Company is obliged to fulfil the following financial
covenants:

As at 31 December 2014, other current liabilities comprise inter alia negative fair values of outstanding derivatives (see Note 15).

covenant
Net debt

Payables to related parties (see Note 21).

Debt coverage ratio (interest
period after 31. 12. 2015)

13. bank loans

Financial leverage
bank

due date

Komerční banka a.s., CITIBANK a.s.,
Česká spořitelna, a.s. and Československá
16. 12. 2016
obchodní banka, a.s. for financing
of the Sikorsky and Black Hawk
Komerční banka, a.s. - project
"Redevelopment and equipment
31. 12. 2017
of AV’s composite shop”
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
31. 12. 2021
– program Sonaca
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
31. 12. 2022
– program Embraer
Komerční banka a.s.
2. 11. 2016
– overdraft
Česká spořitelna, a.s.
31. 8. 2016
– overdraft
Československá obchodní
n/a
banka, a.s. – overdraft
Bank loans - outstanding interest
n/a
Total
Less current portion
Net
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interest
rate
1M LIBOR
+ margin

31. 12. 2015
31. 12. 2014
total amount in foreign
amount in
amount in
amount in
limit
currency czK thousands foreign currency czK thousands
50 000
USD

49 546

1 229 919

80 000

1 826 720

thousands

1M LIBOR
+ margin
3M PRIBOR
+ margin
6M PRIBOR
+ margin
O/N PRIBOR
+ margin
1M LIBOR
+ margin
O/N PRIBOR
+ margin
n/a

60 000
CZK

-

25 000

-

37 000

378 000
CZK

thousands

-

330 733

-

361 725

550 000
CZK

thousands

-

550 000

-

376 914

120 000
CZK

thousands

-

-

-

101 480

50 000
CZK

thousands

-

-

-

21 807

50 000
CZK

-

-

-

31 279

n/a

-

5 318
2 140 970
1 325 371
815 599

-

4 068
2 760 993
208 505
2 552 488

thousands

required value
< 3,9:1
> 150%
< 60%

As at 31 December 2015, the Company is not in compliance with the above financial indicators.
Based on the above loan agreement with Česká exportní banka, a.s., for financing of the Embraer program, the Company is obliged to fulfil the following financial covenants:
covenant

thousands

calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA (including
adjustments relating to disposal/sale of inventory acquired prior to 2007)
(Annual net income + amortization/depreciation + change in provisions
and allowances – change in inventories – change in current receivables
+ change in current payables – CAPEX + interest expense) / (interest expense)
Total provisions and liabilities / Total assets

Net debt
Debt coverage ratio (interest
period after 31. 12. 2015)
Financial leverage

calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA (including adjustments
relating to disposal/sale of inventory acquired prior to 2007)
(Annual net income + amortization/depreciation + change in provisions
and allowances – change in inventories – change in current receivables
+ change in current payables – CAPEX + interest expense) / (interest expense)
Total provisions and liabilities / Total assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Company is not in compliance with the above financial indicators.

required value
< 3,9:1
> 150%
< 60%
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15. deriváty

As at 31 December 2015, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):
bank
Komerční banka, a.s.

ČSOB, a.s.

ČEB, a.s.
Total

guarantee type
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment
advance payment
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment
advance payment
performance bond
advance payment
performance bond
advance payment
advance payment
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment

valid until
Indefinite
Indefinite
3.2.2016
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
30.11.2017
31.12.2016
31.12.2016
15.9.2016
15.9.2016
31.8.2016
31.9.2016
15.11.2016
31.10.2016
1.3.2017
31.12.2016
31.12.2016
30.3.2017
30.9.2017

amount
2 054
946
2 703
1 000
22 312
24 864
2 703
4 709
7 064
7 064
2 013
946
2 703
4 709
4 729
7 064
7 064
3 844
25 672
3 115
90 572
4 283
128
153
467
303
206 253
825 011
1 264 448

As at 31 December 2015, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash of CZK 191,211 thousand deposited in restricted bank
accounts (see Note 8).

14. other liabilities
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, deferred income includes revenues from sales related to Sikorsky, Alenia A321, and Stelia projects, which
are recognized into income for the year in which they were earned.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Company has no hedging derivatives concluded. The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at 31 December 2014. The derivatives were revalued at fair value, with negative fair values of the hedging derivatives being included in other payables and in differences arising from the revaluation of assets and liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.
The following table summarizes face values and negative values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

(in czK thousands)
Options
Swaps
Total derivatives held for hedging

face value
-

positive
-

2015
fair value
negative
-

face value
166 350
166 350

positive
-

2014
fair value
negative
-3 346
-3 346

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments of assets and liabilities in a hedge of a foreign currency
or interest rate risks and that meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
The following table summarizes face values and negative values of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

(in czK thousands)
Options
Currency SWAP
Total derivatives held for hedging

face value
-

positive
-

2015
fair value
negative
-

face value
16 635
16 440
33 075

positive
-

2014
fair value
negative
-675
-245
-920
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17. leasing

16. income taxes

Profit before taxes
Differences between book and tax depreciation
Non-deductible expenses:
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Shortages and losses
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses)
Unpaid contractual penalties
Deduction of research and development costs
Current income tax rate
Current tax expense

2015 accounting period (in czK thousands)
61 024
-7 565

2014 accounting period (in czK thousands)
226 477
-148 512

28 926
109 558
27 106
36 743
-9 384
-124 246
19 %
23 211

27 192
-28 164
35 055
22 971
-7 039
-127 980
19 %
-

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance sheet (see Note 3i).
Assets which are being used by the Company under operating leases as at 31 December 2015 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):
terms
Information technologies

until 2018

expense
in 2015
5 606

expense
in 2014
5 119

cost
26 193

Assets which are being used by the Company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the Company when the lease term
expires) as of 31 December 2015 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):
description
Machinery

terms

total lease

until 2021

182 737

payments made
as at 31.12.2015
77 702

remaining payments as at 31.12.2015
due within one year
due over one year
27 409
77 626

The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands):

Difference between net book value of fixed
assets for accounting and tax purposes
Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory
Allowance against inventory
Allowance against fixed assets
Provisions
Total
Net

deferred
ax asset

31.12.2015
deferred
tax liability

deferred
ax asset

31.12.2014
deferred
tax liability

-

-16 670

-

-16 634

6 449
95 323
23 609
63 586
188 967
172 597

-16 370
-

7 858
86 401
25 627
42 770
162 656
146 022

-16 634
-

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company did not record a deferred tax asset of CZK 172,597 thousand and CZK 146,022 thousand,
respectively on the basis that its future recovery is uncertain.

18. commitments and contingencies
The Company has a contractual relationship with mediators and records liabilities to them upon the completion of sales contracts. Pursuant
to the sale contract, the Company undertakes to pay the mediator a part of the income earned. It is not possible to determine the amount
until contract completion.
As at 8 December 2005, AERO Vodochody a.s. entered into a general agreement for after warranty support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft with
the Ministry of Defense of the Czech Republic. The contract was signed for a definite period until January 2029. Within the Spin-off project,
the general agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In cases of significant breaches of the contractual terms
or in case of withdrawal from the contract, the Ministry of Defense of the Czech Republic is entitled to claim a penalty and potential
additional compensation from the Company. Under the terms of this agreement, a significant portion of its fixed assets may not be freely
disposed of (see Note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term contracts with suppliers. As at 31 December 2015, the commitments
arising from contracts concluded with suppliers amounted to CZK 1,693,901 thousand; of that the supplies for the Sikorsky project totalled
CZK 261,652 thousand. These contracts, as a rule, include a provision stipulating the amount of compensation that the Company is obliged
to pay if it fails to fulfil contractual obligations or if it withdraws from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept responsibility for
possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded liability insurance for its own aviation activity, inter alia liability for operation of aircraft including accident
insurance, liability for hangars operation, liability for airport and navigation tower operation, and insurance for damage caused by faulty
products. The overall limit regarding insurance for damage caused by faulty products totals USD 250,000 thousand, including sublimits for
selected projects, i.e. USD 250,000 thousand and USD 200,000 thousand for the Sikorsky and SAAB project, respectively. The globally
effective insurance covers the major risks emerging from the Company’s aeronautical operations.
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21. related party information

19. revenues

The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive officers were granted no loans, guarantees, advances or other
benefits in the 2015 and 2014 accounting period and they do not hold any shares of the Company.

The breakdown of revenues from ordinary activities (in CZK thousands):

Aviation production
Non-aviation production
Total revenues

2014
foreign
3 445 039
3 445 039

domestic
446 634
37 436
484 070

domestic
421 442
39 309
460 751

2015
foreign
3 510 248
3 510 248

The Company sells products, goods and provides services to related parties in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest income were CZK 13,547 thousand and CZK 20,288 thousand (of which interest income was CZK 3,151 thousand and CZK 3,771 thousand) in
2015 and 2014, respectively.
Loans provided to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

In the 2015 accounting period, the revenues of the Company were concentrated primarily with four main customers in the aviation industry,
i.e. Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic, Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) and the
Ministry of Defence of Iraq.
Subsidies received from the government for maintaining the Company’s operations totalling CZK 18,780 thousand and CZK 37,982 thousand
in 2015 and 2014 are recorded in other operating revenues.

related party
AERO Vodochody a.s. - CZK
- EUR
Clester a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s. - EUR
Clarex Investments a.s. - EUR
Total

due dates/
/interest dates
2016/4,02 %
2016/7,58 %
2016/7,58 %
2016/6,10 %

amount in original
currency (in thousands)
2
172
400
300

2015

2014

2
4 639
10 810
8 108
23 559

35 674
4 684
22 180
8 318
70 856

2015
11 561
1 720
2 041
1 890
38
10
8
17 268

2014
9 674
7
1 406
2 369
1 405
20 403
10 162
38
118
105
45 687

20. personnel and related expenses
The loans mature in 2016 and therefore they are classified as short-term as at 31 December 2015.
The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows (in CZK thousands):
Short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Průměrný počet zaměstnanců
Mzdy
Sociální zabezpečení a zdravotní pojištění
Sociální náklady
Odměny statutárním zástupcům společnosti
Osobní náklady celkem

total
personnel
1 839
747 381
246 582
16 482
9 146
1 019 591

2015
of which: members
of managerial bodies
23
53 336
11 858
992
3 861
70 047

total
personnel
1 848
766 085
251 865
16 327
2 521
1 036 798

2014
of which: members
of managerial bodies
22
55 095
11 496
945
24
67 560

The members and former members of statutory and supervisory bodies received total bonuses and other remuneration of CZK 9,146 thousand
and CZK 2,521 thousand in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

related party
Clarex Investments a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
Clester a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AB Facility, a.s.
OAKFIELD a.s.
TULAROSA a.s.
Total

– promissory notes in EUR
– interest in EUR (estimated item)
– trade receivables in EUR
– interest in EUR (estimated item)
– trade receivables in CZK
– interest in CZK (estimated item)
– trade receivables in CZK
– trade receivables in EUR
– trade receivables in CZK
– trade receivables in CZK
– trade receivables in CZK

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded a deposit of CZK 112 thousand and CZK 112 thousand, respectively, in related party,
Privatbanka, a.s.
The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary course of business. Purchases were CZK 121,134
thousand and CZK 104,097 thousand in the 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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24. statement of cash flows (see appendix 1)

Short-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
related party
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s. (interest)
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
AB Facility, a.s. (advanced payment)
AB Facility, a.s.
AB Facility Services s.r.o.
Total

2015
1 242
1 648
5 006
6 167
2 023
10 241
1 617
27 944

2014
2 113
62
3 936
7 845
136
12 586
905
27 583

22. research and development costs

The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method.

25. statement of changes in equity (see note 10)
26. significant events after the balance sheet date
Based on the contract on sale and purchase, part of the plant of Vodochody Airport company was transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE
a.s. in January 2016.
A of 1. 1. 2016, there has been change in statues of the company. Business activity range of the company was expanded by operation of the
airport and associated services.

Research and development costs amounted to CZK 267,292 thousand and CZK 421,481 thousand in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

23. significant items of income statement

Effective as of 15th May 2016, Ladislav Šimek was relieved of his duties as President of the company and Chairman of the Board of
Directors. Giuseppe Giordo has been appointed as the new President and CEO of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

In 2015 and 2014, other operating revenues comprise in particular revenues from ceded receivables (see Note 6) and from received subsidies
(see Note 19).
In 2015 and 2014, other operating expenses include in particular the nominal value of ceded receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages
and insurance fees.
Other finance income and expense include mainly exchange rate gains and losses in 2015 and 2014.
Fees paid to statutory auditors for assurance services are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.

Dominika Kalinová
member of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Petr Brychta
member of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Report of the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. regarding relations between controlling and controlled entity and
between controlled entity and entities controlled by the same controlling entity drawn-up pursuant to the provisions of Section 82-88 of Act
No. 90/2012 Coll., on business corporations and cooperatives (the Business Corporations Act)

controlling entity:

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
having its registered seat at the address Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, Postal Code 250 70
Business ID No.: 24194204
registered in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Record 17749
(hereinafter referred to only as the “Company”)

part ii
specified period
This report has been drawn-up for the period from 1 January 2015 until 31 December 2015.

part iii
structure of the relations between controlling and controlled entity and between controlled entity and entities controlled by the same
controlling entity
The entities controlled by the same controlling entity comprise the Company and other entities that are controlled by it either directly or
indirectly, and further the companies controlled by the controlling entity, i.e., the entities controlled by Penta Investments Group Limited.

100%

PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED (JE)
100%

Vodochody Holdings Limited (CY)
100%

100%



Penta Investments Group Limited
having its registered seat at the address 3rd Floor, Osprey House, 5-7 Old Street, St Helier,
JE2 3RG, Channel Islands, Jersey
Registration No.: 112 251





controlled entity:
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Penta Investments Group Limited (JE)

controlled and controlling entity

OAKFIELD a.s.

SALORI HOLDING B.V (NL)

100%

TULAROSA a.s.

100%

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

100%

AERO Vodochody a.s.

100%



part i

The structure of the relations between the above-mentioned entities is illustrated in the following scheme.

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
100%

Clester Trading a.s.
100%

Clarex Investments a.s.

100%

LV-Solar Vodochody a.s.
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part iv
role of the controlled entity in the structure of relations between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and the entities controlled
by the same controlling entity
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a separate business enterprise with a specific scope of business within the ownership structure of the
controlling entity.
It thus does not perform any activities common for the remaining entities in the ownership structure of the controlling entity and is not subordinate to uniform management - i.e., it does not form a concern together with the controlling entity and other entities within the controlling
entity's ownership structure.

period between January 1, 2015 and december 31, 2015
entity

AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Penta Investments
Limited (Jersey)
Clester Trading a. s.

part v
method and means of control over the controlled entity
The controlling entity controls the controlled entity as it owns 100% of shares of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. through a majority ownership
interest in the company TULAROSA a.s. The controlling entity performs its business interests through its shareholder's rights within the
superior body of the controlled entity, including appointment of persons to the statutory bodies of the controlled entity.

Clarex Investments a. s.
Clarex Investments a. s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

overview of agreements between the controlled entity and controlling entity or between controlled entities
A. No agreements have been executed between the controlled entity and the controlling entity during the specified period.
B. The following agreements were executed between the controlled entity and other entities controlled by the same controlling entity during
the specified period:

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
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Agreement dated August 20. 2013
Amendment No. 1 to Loan
Agreement dated August 20. 2013
Loan Agreement dated October 27, 2015
Agreement on loss compensation
Amendment No. 3 to Loan
Agreement dated July 22, 2010
Amendment No. 4 to Loan
Agreement dated September 16, 2009
Amendment No. 1 to Loan
Agreement dated July 10, 2009
Contract for lease
of business space

execution date

provided performance

term

detriment

August 20, 2015

Prolongation of the loan

August 30, 2016

None

August 20, 2015

Prolongation of the loan

August 30, 2016

None

October 27, 2015 Granting a loan
July 13, 2015
July 21, 2010

Temporary guarantee until the
conclusion of insurance contract
Prolongation of the loan

September 15, 2015 Prolongation of the loan
December 18, 2015 Prolongation of the loan
May 14, 2015

December 31, 2016 None
July 30, 2015

None

July 22, 2016

None

September 16, 2016 None
December 31, 2016 None

Lease of business

Definite

space

period of time

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Provision
of Services SM/11/LV dated January 1, 2009

None

December 31, 2015
January 22, 2015

Agreement on termination of the Agreement for
Provision of Services SM/12/LV dated January 1, 2009

Reduction

Indefinite

of provided services

period of time

Termination of the contract
Termination of the contract

None

Provision of Services SM/22/LV dated January 1, 2009 December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015
Agreement on termination of the Agreement for
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Provision
of Energy SM/33/LV dated January 1, 2009

Termination of the contract

Agreement on termination of the Agreement for
Provision of Energy SM/33/LV dated January 1, 2009
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Provision
of Energy SM/34/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement for
Provision of Energy SM/34/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement for

Reduction

Indefinite

of provided services

period of time

Termination of the contract

January 1, 2015

Reduction

Indefinite

of provided services

period of time

Termination of the contract
December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015
Termination of the contract
Termination of the contract

Provision of Energy SM/37/LV dated January 1, 2009 December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015

None
None

December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015

Provision of Energy SM/35/LV dated January 1, 2009 December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015
Agreement on termination of the Agreement for

None

December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015
January 1, 2015

None
None

December 31, 2015 by December 31, 2015

Agreement on termination of the Agreement for

Provision of Services SM/32/LV dated January 1, 2009

None

Termination

on ensuring of permanent readiness of the company December 31, 2015 of the contract by
fire brigade SM/1/LV Dated January 1, 2009

part vi

part vii

Amendment No. 1 to Loan

Agreement on termination of the General Agreement
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

overview of actions taken during the last accounting period upon the motion or in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled
entities of any such action related to the assets exceeding 10% of the equity capital of the controlled entity determined from the last financial
statement.
During the period in question, no action relating to the assets exceeding 10 % of the equity capital of the controlled entity determined from the
last financial statement took place upon the motion or in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled entities.

agreement name

None
None
None
None
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period between January 1, 2015 and december 31, 2015
entity

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

agreement name

Agreement on termination of the Agreement on lease
of airfield SM/38/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement on lease
of non-residential premises SM/39/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement on lease
of non-residential premises SM/40/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement on lease
of non-residential premises SM/41/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement on lease
of non-residential premises SM/42/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Agreement for
Provision of Services SM/46/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on termination of the Loan
Agreement SM/53/LV dated January 1, 2009
Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement on work
SM/58/LV with KonekTel, a.s., dated November 27, 2009

period between January 1, 2015 and december 31, 2015
execution date

December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2015
November 11, 2015

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Termination of the contract
by December 31, 2015
Termination of the contract
by December 31, 2015
Termination of the contract
by December 31, 2015
Termination of the contract
by December 31, 2015
Termination of the contract
by December 31, 2015
Contract assignment by January
1, 2016 (trilateral agreement)

on post-warranty service SM/72/LV with TRANSCOM November 30, 2015

by January 1, 2016
(trilateral agreement)

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement

Contract assignment

on mutual provision and utilization of operational data December 15, 2015

by January 1, 2016

SM/91/LV with ŘLP, s.p., dated July 1, 2010

(trilateral agreement)

Amendment to Agreement on provision

Contract

of publicly available electronic communication

assignment

service SM/97/LV with T-Mobile Czech

December 8, 2015

by January 1, 2016

Republic a.s., dated September 30, 2010

(trilateral agreement)

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement

Contract assignment

on post-warranty service SM/126/LV with

November 30, 2015

by January 1, 2016

RETIA a.s., dated June 1, 2011

(trilateral agreement)

Agreement on contract assignment of Service

Contract assignment

Agreement SM/154/LV with ELVAC

November 30, 2015

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement on work
SM/188/LV with NET-SYSTEM s.r.o., dated November 5, 2012
on provision of service services SM/222/LV

November 9, 2015

with NET-SYSTEM s.r.o., dated October 1, 2014

entity

None

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None
None
None
None

by January 1, 2016

None

None

Contract assignment by January 1,
2016 (trilateral agreement)

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

None

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

November 30, 2015

by January 1, 2016

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

(trilateral agreement)

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

None

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
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of rainwater SM/260/LV, dated January 1, 2015
Contract for drainage of rainwater
SM/261/LV, dated January 1, 2015
Agreement on termination of Contract for drainage
of rainwater SM/261/LV, dated January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
December 31, 2015
January 1, 2015
December 31, 201

on performing service and repairs SM/262/LV

provided performance

term

Drainage of rainwater

Indefinite
period of time None

Termination of the contract

Disposal of rainwater

Contract assignment

Agreement on contract assignment of General

Contract assignment

Agreement on provision of publicly available

dated January 1, 2015
Agreement on termination of Contract for drainage
of rainwater SM/266/LV, dated January 1, 2015
Contract for disposal of waste water SM/273/LV,
dated January 1, 2015
Agreement on termination of Contract for disposal
of waste water SM/273/LV, dated January 1, 2015
Contract for drainage of rainwater SM/275/LV,
dated January 1, 2015
Agreement on termination of Contract for drainage
of rainwater SM/275/LV, dated January 1, 2015
Contract for disposal of waste water SM/277/LV,
dated January 1, 2015
Agreement on termination of Contract for disposal
of waste water SM/277/LV, dated January 1, 2015

None

by January

None

November 30, 2015 1, 2016
(trilateral agreement)
January 1, 2015
December 31, 201
January 1, 2015
December 31, 201
January 1, 2015
December 31, 201
January 1, 2015
December 31, 201

Drainage of rainwater

None

by December 31, 2015
Disposal
of waste water

Indefinite
period of time None

Termination of the contract

None

by December 31, 2015
Drainage
of rainwater

Indefinite
period of time None

Termination of the contract

None

by December 31, 2015
Disposal
of waste water

Indefinite
period of time None

Termination of the contract

None

by December 31, 2015
Sale of movables

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement on work

Contract assignment by January

November 30, 2015

Indefinite
period of time None

Termination of the contract

Purchase contract SM/281/LV, dated March 27, 2015 March 27, 2015
SM/283/LV with Zeppelin CZ s.r.o., dated March 9, 2015

None

by December 31, 2015

(trilateral agreement)

Contract for drainage of rainwater SM/266/LV,

Indefinite
period of time None

Termination of the contract

with TECHNISERV, spol. s r.o., dated December 4, 2014

electronic communication service SM/263/LV with

None
None

1, 2016 (trilateral agreement)
Contract assignment

Convention SM/286/LV with 26th Regiment of Command, November 30, 2015 by January 1, 2016
Purchase contract SM/289/LV, dated May 31, 2015
Agreement on lease of immovable property
SM/293/LV, dated August 19, 2015
Purchase contract on transfer of immovable property
SM/295/LV, dated November 23, 2015
Agreement on the sale and purchase of part of business
plant SM/296/LV, dated December 28, 2015
Lease agreement SM/297/LV,
dated December 31, 2015

detriment

None

by December 31, 2015

November 30, 2015 by January 1, 2016

Control and Surveillance, dated April 30, 2015

Contract assignment
by January 1, 2016

Agreement on termination of Contract for drainage

Agreement on contract assignment of Cooperation

(trilateral agreement)
November 9, 2015

SM/260/LV, dated January 1, 2015

execution date

UPC Česká republika, s.r.o., dated January 12, 2015

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
None

agreement name

Contract for drainage of rainwater

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

Contract assignment

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement
on purchase of leased property SM/258/LV

detriment

(trilateral agreement)

with ALES s.r.o., dated December 10, 2013
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

by December 31, 2015

ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS, spol. s r.o., dated February 17, 2010

Agreement on contract assignment of Agreement
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

by December 31, 2015
Termination of the contract

term

Contract assignment

SOLUTION s.r.o., dated April 17, 2012
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

provided performance

Termination of the contract

None

(trilateral agreement)
May 31, 2015
August 19, 2015

Sale of documentation
Lease
of trigger source

None
December 31,
2015

None

November 23, 2015 Sale of immovable property

None

December 28, 2015 Sale of part of business plant

None

December 31, 201

Lease
of airfield

Indefinite
period of time None
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report on relations among related entities

part viii
assessment as to whether the controlled entity has suffered any detriment and assessment of its settlement
There was no detriment caused to the controlled entity by actions of the controlling entity during the specified period and it was therefore
impossible to assess its settlement.

part ix
assessment of the advantages and disadvantages resulting from the relations between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and the
entities controlled by the same controlling entity
The fact that a strong financial group stands behind the controlled entity represents a great advantage for the controlled entity, regardless
whether in relation to banks, from which the controlled entity receives loans, or in relation to foreign clients where the controlling entity can
provide contractual support in business cases implementation.
There was no situation in the relationship between the controlling and controlled entity during the specified period that could be classified
as disadvantageous in a business or other sense.

part x
conclusion
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. hereby represents that it has used all the efforts of the reasonable person to
identify the range of relations between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and between the controlled entity and the entities
controlled by the same controlling entity for the purpose of preparation of this report, in particular by querying the controlling entity with
regard to the entities controlled by it during the period in question.
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. hereby represents that all financial performance and/or counter-performance
provided on the groundwork of the relations specified in Part VII hereof were at the usual level.
This report has been submitted for review to the Supervisory Board and to the auditor responsible for review of the financial statement pursuant to the provisions of special law.

In Odolena Voda, 31. 3. 2016

Ladislav Šimek
Chairman of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Petr Brychta
Member of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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